
County Commission Courthouse
206 W. 1st Avenue

Hutchinson, KS 67501

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer
  
3. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair
  
4. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5
minutes per item.

  
5. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda
  
6. Consent Agenda
 6.A Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units)
 6.B BOCC drafted minutes for approval March 13th, March 27th, and March 27th

Canvass 2024
 6.C BOCC minutes for April 10th and April 24th, 2024 drafts
 6.D Purchase one 2024 Ford Maverick from Midway Motors in the amount of $28,759

for the Sheriff's Department and declare a 2014 Ford F150 (1FTFW1EF0EKE90611)
as surplus to be either auctioned on Purple Wave or traded in. Would also like to
authorize County Administrator Randy Partington to sign the title work.

 6.E Resolution 2024_____ Planning Case #2024-03 - A request and Resolution by
Unified School District #313 (Applicant: Landmark Architects) for a conditional use
permit to establish a daycare center on a parcel of land zoned R-1 - Rural Residential
District.  The property is located at 509 E. 56th Avenue which is at the southeast
corner of N. Plum Street and E. 56th Avenue

 6.F Resolution 2024____ Planning Case #2024-04 - A request by the Central Kansas
Gun Club of Reno County, Inc. (Applicant: Nex-Tech Wireless) for a conditional use
permit to construct a not-to-exceed 220-foot-tall self-support telecommunication
tower and place a temporary 150-foot-tall cell-on-wheels (COW) on a parcel of land
zoned AG - Agricultural District.  The property is located at 7908 N. Lorraine Street
which is approximately 3/4 of a mile north of the intersection of E. 69th Avenue and
N. Lorraine Street.

 6.G Revision of the Electronic Media, Mobile Device Security, and Training Policy
  
7. Business Items

REGULAR SESSION

  

A G E N D A
Reno County Courthouse Veterans Room

206 W. 1st Ave.
Hutchinson, KS 67501

Wednesday, May 22, 2024, 9:00 AM

Randy Parks
District 1

Ron Hirst
District 2

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

John Whitesel
District 4

Don Bogner
District 5

 



 7.A Reno County Health Department Annual Report
 7.B Replacement Appointment to the Reno County Health Department (RCHD)

Advisory Board
 7.C Discussion of Sheriff's Shooting Range Phase II, Fire District #3, and Fire District #7

Building Needs
  
8. County Administrator Report
 8.A Monthly Department Reports
 8.B Financial Report
  
9. County Commission Report/Comments
  
10. Adjournment

Randy Parks
District 1

Ron Hirst
District 2

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

John Whitesel
District 4

Don Bogner
District 5

 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.B

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Cindy Martin

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
BOCC drafted minutes for approval March 13th, March 27th, and March 27th Canvass 2024

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve
2. Change
3. Deny

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve minutes for final copy 
Make changes before final printing
 



31 
 

 
 

March 27th, 2024 
Reno County Courthouse 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 
 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held an agenda session 
with Chairman Randy Parks, Commissioner Don Bogner, Commissioner 
Daniel Friesen, Commissioner John Whitesel, and Commissioner Ron 
Hirst, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, County Administrator 
Randy Partington, and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present.  
 

The meeting began at 9:00 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance 
followed by a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Ryan Raigoza 
with Soul Winners Mission Church.    
 
 There was one addition Mr. Whitesel requested to remove from 
the consent agenda item 6H putting it as item 7F under the business 
section for the Community Corrections Policy Update. 
 

Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Bogner, to approve the 
consent agenda consisting of items 6A through 6H which includes 
the: (6A) Accounts Payable Ledger for claims payable on March 22nd, 
2024, totaling $577,105.52; Accounts Payable Ledger for claims 
payable on March 29th, 2024, totaling $614,622.97; (6B) approval 
of BOCC final minutes for February 14th and 28th, 2024; (6C) approve 
resolution 2024-05 to add Deputy Treasurers Christen Andrews and 
Jeanette Williams on the State of Kansas Multiple Investment Pool 
(MIP) Accounts; (6D)  approve the revised EMS Agreement with 
Hutchinson Regional Medical Center, Inc.; (6E) approve the 
Community Corrections One-Year Contract Extension with Community 
solutions, Inc. for Quality Assurance and Coaching; (6F) approve 
the Community Corrections Adult Supervision FY2025 Grant 
Application to the Kansas Department of Corrections; (6G) approve 
Community Corrections Juvenile Intensive Supervision Probation 
Policy Updates; (6H) approval of Community Corrections Policy 
Updates; as amended by staff. The motion for the consent agenda 
was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.  
  
 7A.  Vikki Mader CEO Horizon’s Mental Health explained the 
Horizons Quarterly Report.  She spoke about restoration and how 
they got inmates competent to stand trial.  Service updates for 
medical services to meet requirements and financial stats. 
 
 7B. Carla Stanfield, United Way Resource Development 
Representative gave an informational presentation on a new 
emotional support online platform program at a reduced cost to 
United Way and a free tool for anyone, United Way was sponsoring 
the 7 Cups application.   



32 
 

 
 

 The application was live and ready to go. She explained it 
was available to all residents of Reno County with no cost to 
the taxpayers.  Ms. Stanfield referred to partnerships with Reno 
County and some church-based partners in the area. 
 
 7C.  Don Brittain Public Works Director gave a brief annual 
report.  He spoke about replacing the for the Buhler bridge 
issues, now cost is approximately a $7 million dollar project 
with 80 percent paid for in this grant.  Mr. Friesen thanked him 
for all his hard work on the grant to assist a major bridge 
project solving a long-standing issue with flooding.   
 
 7D.  County Attorney Patrick Hofman said there was a 
moratorium put on solar county wide because he said there were 
not any regulations dealing with solar issues in the county.  He 
spoke about the zone area with solar, in the unzone area it has 
been discussed with what is wanted there.  He explained three 
general solar options toward Countywide Zoning; 1) keep status 
quo, 2) commission could instruct Planning and Zoning to review 
the map and apply current zoning county wide which would require 
public hearings, 3) the county is zoned in some fashion 
countywide, it either has full or part of the wind energy 
conversion system district. The Board could direct Planning and 
Zoning to do a text amendment to the wind energy conversion 
system district asking them to regulate solar.  Options 2 and 3 
would go through the Planning and Zoning process and have a 
recommendation brought to the Board of Commissioners.  
 
 Mr. Parks suggested hearing from the rural community on 
solar/wind and wanted to have town hall meetings to see what 
they wanted since they moved out to have no restrictions. 
 
 Mr. Hirst commented that he had a lot of rural residents 
who would appreciate having public meetings.  He was compiling a 
list of options to discuss at these public meetings. He spoke 
about the 10,000-acre event in a solar panel field in Texas that 
had been hit by baseball size hail, he said there were no harsh 
chemicals discovered nor reported yet.  Mr. Hoffman stated after 
hearing Mr. Hirst concerns maybe option (4) should be taking the 
solar issue into the rural residents.  Mr. Hirst motioned to 
give directions to the County Counselor to write a resolution or 
legal document to prohibit commercial solar systems. Article 25-
108(b) applies to Limited Solar not commercial systems, and he 
would like to prohibit it countywide and have the limited solar 
as defined in Article 25 applied to whole county. 
  



33 
 

 
 

 Mr. Hoffman stated the prohibition could be done but he 
said they needed to go through the proper channels starting with 
Planning and Zoning whether countywide or just wind district.  
The Commission could direct Planning and Zoning to put language 
to apply solar to wind district or county wide, these are the 
two options to regulate solar in the unzone area.  He said they 
could not do it by a resolution it must go through Planning and 
Zoning.  
 
 Mr. Bogner was concerned about chemicals from a damaged 
solar panel and that there were no third-party checks or 
regulations in place to keep the issue in line. There are no 
water or soil samples to test and make a base line for checks. 
He said we could mitigate it early for smaller solar panels and 
residential.   
  
 Mr. Parks asked Mr. Newton to speak about solar.  Bill 
Newton from Valley Center is a co-owner of a solar company and 
liaison for City Power and Light. After briefly discussed solar 
energy and how safe it was.  He stated that the commission may 
be keeping the county behind the times in solar energy. Ark 
Valley stated residents could get energy cheaper with solar than 
if Ark Valley was purchasing energy from Evergy.  
  
 Mr. Friesen wanted a point of order; he asked the chairman 
to go back to the agenda item to keep them on track with it. 
 
 Mr. Hoffman restated staff wanted to do the will of the 
commission with the presented three options. He asked what 
direction the Board wanted to take.  He then asked if they 
wanted Planning and Zoning to add solar regulations to the wind 
district in unzone area or take existing zoning and expand it. 
  
 Mr. Whitesel expressed concern with watershed areas.  He 
suggested having another option in the watershed area of Reno 
County concerning regulating unzone areas for solar.   
 
 Mr. Hoffman said that they would have to instruct Planning 
and Zoning to create a new district, creating another zone in 
the county.  
 
 Mr. Brittain questioned prohibiting commercial solar in the 
wind district since there were no regulations on commercial. He 
said if you want to prohibit it then it would go to Planning and 
Zoning and would come back to you.  Zone western half of county 
or not or the whole county. He explained prohibition and 
regulations county wide and the process of how to do it one step 



34 
 

 
 

at a time.  If the Commission decides today to approve the 
regulations in the countywide area for Limited Solar System, 
that is done.  Then we move on to another step with solar 
countywide. 
 
 Mr. Hirst moved to prohibit large-scale utility commercial 
solar facilities as defined in Article 25 allowing limited solar 
and regulated in Article 25 countywide.  Mr. Whitesel stated 
point of order that motion did not go with the agenda item, so 
it died for lack of a second. 
 
 Mr. Whitesel moved to table agenda item 7D until after 
discussing agenda item 7E.  The Board approved by consensus. 
 
 Mr. Hoffman recapped item 7E stating last meeting the Board 
reviewed some limited scale solar regulations returning them to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission for revisions.  He said they 
made some revisions and sent them back.  Now you are looking to 
approve the revisions asked for previously. 
 
 Mr. Brittain asked the Board if they were approving the 
revisions as presented from the Planning and Zoning recommended 
or not.  
 
 7E. There was a review of the Limited Scale Solar 
Regulation changes made at the Planning and Zoning (P&Z) meeting 
on March 21, 2024, pertaining to the five subject matters.  
  

1) address the potential for industrial pollutants that may 
be generated during the life of the project. The P&Z 
Commission by consensus recommended no change to the 
draft regulations. 

2) Article 25-108(8)(A) battery energy storage system, 
specifics should be developed to define the type of 
building material. The P&Z Commission motion was made by 
Commissioner Macklin to prohibit battery storage within 
a limited scale commercial solar energy system; seconded 
by Commissioner Seltzer. The motion passed by a 6-1 vote 
with Strand voting opposed. (See Article 25-108 for the 
specific language passed in the motion).                 
 
   Mr. Brittain briefly went over Limited Scale Solar. 
He spoke with Ark Valley regarding the use of batteries 
and was told they do not use batteries, so this was not 
a major issue for building storage materials.  In the 
future if a company needed batteries, they would have to 
go to the Planning and Zoning Commission stating the 



35 
 

 
 

type of building needed and it will be identified at 
that time and be put in the regulations. 

3) Article 25-108(9)(A) noise addresses whether the maximum 
noise level on the outer wall of a non-participating 
landowner’s principal building should be changed to 
40dBA or something else or left at 60 dBA. The P&Z 
Commission voted by consensus to make no changes to the 
drafted regulations. 

4) Article 25-105(2)(A) and Article 25-108(1)(B) address 
clarifying the language that states all limited scale 
commercial solar projects, whether they are existing or 
proposed, shall be a minimum distance of two miles. 
By consensus P&Z Commission recommended no change to the 
draft regulations.  By consensus P&Z Commission 
determined that no limited scale commercial solar energy 
system within County jurisdiction, may be located within 
two miles of another system. 

5) Article 25-107(3) Documents, plans, studies, reports, 
other permits address whether gravel and rock should be 
prohibited when restoring the ground after a limited 
scale solar facility is constructed. The P&Z Commission 
discussed rock and gravel if it should be considered an 
impervious surface. A motion was made and failed. More 
discussion on the item another motion was made to remove 
the words “Gravel, rock or other” and after the word 
“Material” insert the words “Such as concrete or 
asphalt”. The motion was passed with a 7-0 vote. The 
sentence will now read “The utilization of impervious 
material, such as concrete or asphalt, beneath the solar 
panels is prohibited.” 

  
 Mr. Hirst moved to prohibit large-scale utility commercial 
solar facilities as defined in Article 25 and only allow limited 
solar as defined and regulated in Article 25 countywide.  The 
motion died for lack of a second.   

 
 Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Bogner, to accept the 
solar regulations as presented by staff for the zoned portion of 
the county. No vote was taken at this time. 

 
 Mr. Friesen asked for clarification on the motion adopting 
certain regulations associated with Limited Scale Solar.  He 
asked Mr. Brittain to define limited scale.  Mr. Brittain stated 
it was 10 acres or less of property and not more than 2 
megawatts of electricity or less. There are three levels: small 
residential not addressed yet, large scale commercial under 
moratorium and not addressed yet either which could be banned, 



36 
 

 
 

and limited scale solar.  He asked if there were regulations in 
the county on storage of other dangerous materials.    

 
Mr. Vonachen County Planner said there were no specific 

regulations for other dangerous materials, however that kind of 
land use would have to go through the conditional use permit 
process and the Planning Commission would set the guidelines.  

  
Mr. Friesen questioned the building for other dangerous 

materials and how it would have to be a conditional use permit 
with factors. We are being focused on a certain specific item 
not addressed other dangerous materials. 

 
Mr. Friesen moved to amend the motion by Mr. Whitesel, 

strike the language prohibiting battery storage.  Mr. Parks 
seconded the motion. No vote at this time. 

 
Mr. Hoffman reminded the Commissioners that this vote, 

since it came from the Planning Commission’s recommendation, 
would require a super majority meaning it must have 4 votes not 
3 to win the issue. The amended motion failed with a 3 to 2 vote 
with Mr. Bogner and Mr. Whitesel opposed.   

 
Mr. Friesen questioned the K.S.A. statue for super 

majority.  Mr. Hoffman quoted the statue K.S.A. 12-749 (D) and 
he read the statue for Mr. Friesen that outlined what a super 
majority vote was by commissioners. 

   
 There was a large discussion on battery storage.  
 
 Mr. Whitesel amended his motion regarding sending it back 
to the Planning Commission regarding battery storage providing 
there is language that a suitable building be built for 
batteries.  No vote at this time   
 
 Mr. Friesen asked Mr. Whitesel to withdraw his motion.  Mr. 
Whitesel still wanted to send it back to Planning and Zoning. 
 
 Mr. Vonachen discussed buildings for batteries that were 
not needed at this time.  He said batteries on Limited Scale 
Solar are prohibited.  He said it could be done in the future 
through the process of a conditional use permit. 
  
 Mr. Whitesel motioned to amend his previous motion to allow 
the battery storage as was written in Article 25-108 (A) the 
previous recommended regulations two weeks ago with the change 
to require building suitable to contain the batteries stored 



37 
 

 
 

within as determined by the Planning Commission in the 
conditional use permit process, seconded by Mr. Hirst. No vote 
taken at this time. 
 
 Mr. Friesen asked to strike restricting and said don’t say 
you need a building just leave it for Planning and Zoning, “no 
to boxing us in”.  Mr. Friesen asked Mr. Whitesel to withdraw 
his motion and Mr. Friesen would make a motion. Mr. Whitesel did 
not want to withdraw his motion; he would like to send it back 
to the Planning Commission.  
 
 Gary Graber commented on battery storage in commercial 
industries that use large scale battery storage and stating the 
Board could affect other companies who are not connected with 
solar.  
  
 Mr. Whitesel voting on the amended motion to accept what 
they had two weeks ago (8) regarding the storing of batteries in 
a building. (A) The change was to be suitable to contain the 
battery with a locking mechanism. No vote at this time 
    
 Mr. Friesen moved to amend the amendment striking building 
requirements in (8A), seconded by Mr. Parks. The motion failed 
with a 2-3 vote with Mr. Bogner, Mr. Hirst and Mr. Whitesel 
opposed. 

 
Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to adopt the 

agenda item for Limited Scale Solar with amendment 8(A) changing 
(A) to include enclosed in a building and adopt all of that in 
the county zoning code.  The motion was approved by a 4-1 vote 
with Mr. Bogner opposed. 
  
 Amended motion 8(A) changes that A battery storage systems 
will be stored into the county zoning code. The motion was 
approved by a 4-1 with Mr. Bogner opposed. 
 
 7D. Countywide Zoning Options had (4) Cheney watershed in 
unzone area needs to have public hearings.  Mr. Hirst stated 
public meetings should take place to educate the public because 
they have zero rights now, giving the people a voice to say what 
they would like.  Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Whitesel, 
to table item 7D until commissioners with unzone areas can give 
information to the Chairman for discussion on countywide zoning 
options.  The motion was approved by a 5-0 vote. 
 
 



38 
 

 
 

 7F. Randy Regehr Community Corrections Director explained 
Kansas Department of Corrections changed standards which 
requires Community Corrections agencies to update policies to 
match the standards from the state.  These updates were created 
to align with KDOC standards for DEI.  These changes created 
little to no actual change in operations, however the ability to 
take credit/debit cards was added to policy 4-01.  Mr. Whitesel 
asked for a ban on language and training. Mr. Regehr said these 
were suggestions not put into practice here; he had no 
objections to changing the language but would like it approved 
as submitted. Mr. Bogner commented it was okay as written from 
state, if added commission could be added at any time so let it 
ride with original verbiage.  Mr. Whitesel amended motion to 
approve item 6H adding language emailed to Mr. Randy Partington 
and Commissioners, inserting after paragraph C language, 
seconded by Mr. Hirst.  The motion was approved by a roll call 
vote of 5-0.      
   
 8A. County Administrator Randy Partington asked the Board 
if there were any questions with this month’s department 
reports, there were no questions.  He mentioned a countywide 
housing study with scope of services and schedule. He asked the 
commission if they wanted to partner on the survey with City of 
Hutchinson and South Hutchinson. He would be using funding from 
the economic development line item for $20,000 or less for all 
communities and cities for the survey to locate housing options 
in rural areas.  Ideas give justification in other areas as 
needed, show data for needs. 
 
 9.  Commissioner Comments: 
  
 Mr. Friesen asked if moratorium was lifted or not for Ark 
Valley to proceed with solar project, it would be done formally 
next week by updating the moratorium for the zoned area not the 
unzone area yet. He would like to debate residential solar next 
agenda session.  He thanked Mr. Brittain again for the 
assistance with the grant. Mr. Brittain clarified it would be 
private not residential solar. 
  
 Mr. Bogner spoke about the EMS meeting and how the new 
ambulance housing would speed up response times.  The move will 
give the Health Department more space. EMS was financially good, 
and their collections were good with less runs. 
 
 Mr. Hirst also attended the EMS meeting and commented on 
the Fire Marshall stating with fire detector equipment 
approximate cost of $70,000 to do this in buildings.  



39 
 

 
 

 
 Mr. Whitesel spoke about Ash Wednesday, Good Friday and 
Easter Sunday being an opportunity to be right with God which 
would solve a lot of mental health issues.  He invited the 
public to visit DowntownHutch.com or Hutch.com, both were good 
sites to visit about happenings in Hutchinson. 
 
 Mr. Parks had no comments.   
 

At 11:30 a.m. the meeting recessed for five minutes. 
 

The meeting reconvened with all Commissioners, County 
Administrator Randy Partington, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, 
and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present. 
 
 10A.  At 11:36 a.m. Mr. Parks moved the Board enter into 
executive session for 20 minutes until 11:56 a.m. with the 
County Administrator Randy Partington and County Counselor 
Patrick Hoffman, the subject matter to be legal obligations of 
the county, and the justification for the executive session is 
to discuss confidential legal matters which are protected by 
attorney-client privilege including Debbie Teufel President and 
CEO of Chamber of Commerce, seconded by Mr. Friesen. The motion 
was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0. 
 
 At 11:56 a.m. Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to 
extend the executive session by 10 minutes until 12:06 p.m. The 
motion was approved by consensus. 
 
 At 12:06 p.m. Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to 
extend the executive session by 5 minutes until 12:11 p.m. The 
motion was approved by consensus. 
 
 At 12:11 p.m. the executive session returned to a regular 
session. 
  
 County Administrator Randy Partington requested the Board 
vote to add an item to the agenda for an incentive agreement 
between Reno County and Superior Holdings to expand their 
company by 50 more employees.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 
 

 
 

 Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, to add to the 
agenda the Superior Holdings relocation incentive agreement for 
a vote.  Mr. Whitesel was opposed to putting this item on the 
agenda because the public had not made any input on this new 
policy for incentives.  The motion was approved by a roll call 
vote of 4-1 with Mr. Whitesel opposed. 
 
 Mr. Partington stated the relocation would use the Economic 
Development line item for the job incentive pilot program.  The 
contract to relocate incentive was for $2,500 per person. 
 
 Debra Teufel from Chamber of Commerce clarified the jobs 
would be verified by Superior Holdings by presenting proof to 
the Chamber and Reno County of residence here, then the Chamber 
would do a quarterly report to Reno County to reimburse the 
company for the $2,500 per person for 50 employees for a total 
of $125,000.   
 
 Mr. Whitesel thought this item was being rushed through and 
not discussed with the public since it may involve taxpayers’ 
funding. 
 
 County Counselor Patrick Hoffman clarified that under 
federal laws to be allowed to legally work in the state of 
Kansas you could not be illegal or a criminal alien. 
 
 Ms. Teufel stated she was not trying to rush though this 
item she would be okay to put it on the next agenda meeting.  
She thought the Board could approve the vote after the executive 
session or possibly expedite the item. 
 
 Mr. Parks was looking for a motion to pass raising the 
amount and incentive redirecting paying for the individuals not 
companies.  Mr. Partington said the Board could put on a future 
agenda meeting agenda. 
 
 Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Parks, to approve 
placing the Superior Holding incentive contract on the consent 
agenda for the next agenda session.  Mr. Hirst made a few 
comments on the work that had gone into this item.  
 
 Mr. Whitesel amended the motion to move item off the 
consent agenda and put it as a business item.  This motion 
failed for a second. 
 



41 
 

 
 

 Mr. Hirst called for the question of whether to vote. The 
Board approved with a roll call vote of 4-1 with Mr. Whitesel 
opposed. 
 
 The original motion by Mr. Friesen and seconded by Mr. 
Parks, was voted on and approved by a roll call vote of 4-1 with 
Mr. Whitesel opposed.  
 
 At 12:33 p.m. the meeting adjourned until Wednesday, April 
10th, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 

 
Approved: 

  
  ________________________________________ 
  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 
 
(ATTEST) 
 
_________________________     _________ 
Reno County Clerk       Date 
cm 

 

 



29 
 

March 27th, 2024 

Reno County Annex 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners met in a canvass 

session with Chairman Randy Parks, Commissioner Don Bogner, 

Commissioner Ron Hirst, and Commissioner John Whitesel, and 

Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present.  Commissioner Daniel 

Friesen was not available.        

 

 At 8:00 a.m. Mr. Parks opened the meeting with the Board of 

Canvassers for the purpose of canvassing votes for the March 

19th, 2024, Presidential Preference Primary Election that had a 

turnout of 7 percent. 

 

 Deputy County Clerk Jenna Fager explained the Provisional 

Ballots for the Presidential Preference process stating the 

number of ballots to count or not count from accurately 

researching each one.  The Canvass was conducted per K.S.A. 25-

3104 with Ms. Fager recommending the date and time for the 

canvass to be held.  Also in attendance was County Clerk Donna 

Patton, Election Associates Alisha Johnson, Karen Fisher, April 

Hoschouer, and Alison Rice. The counting board consisted of 

Karen Troyer, Michel Raymond, and Janice Rudicel who will tally 

the provisional votes.  There was a total of 38 ballots 

presented to the Board of Canvassers for the Presidential 

Preference Primary Election. 

 

They recommended 10 ballots not to be counted: 

   

a. Voter did not affiliate when voting party ballot         1 
(KSA 25-3301(c), 25-3304 (b)  

b. Voter lives in another county and voted in Reno County   1 
c. Voter voted both in advance and voted at the polls       2 

(KSA 25-2416(b) 

d. Voter was not a registered voter                         6 
(KSA 25-215, 25-2302, 25-2421(a) 

 

Mr. Bogner moved, seconded by Mr. Whitesel, to approve the 

recommendation from staff for what was not to be counted.  The motion 

was approved by a roll call vote of 4-0.  

 

They recommended 28 ballots to be counted: 

 

a. Voter moved within Reno County and had not     14 

Re-registered and voted at correct precinct 

(KSA 25-2316c(b), 25-2353, 25-409) 

b. Name was different from voter registration      1 



30 
 

(KSA 25-409, 25-231c(a) 

c. Name was different from voter registration and moved     1 
within Reno County. Voter voted at correct precinct 

(KSA 25-409, 25-2316c(a) 

d. Clerical error voter should not have issued a     10 

provisional ballot 

(KSA 25-2908(e) 

 

 Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Whitesel, to approve the 

recommendation from staff for what to count.  The motion was approved 

by a roll call vote of 4-0.  

 

They recommended 2 ballots to be partially counted: 

 

a. Voter moved within Reno County but voted at the    2 

wrong polling location 

(KSA 25-3702, 25-3002(b)(3)  

 

 Mr. Bogner moved, seconded by Mr. Whitesel, to approve the 

ballots as recommended by staff. The motion was approved by a roll 

call vote of 5-0.  

 

 At 8:10 a.m. Mr. Parks recessed for 20 minutes for the 

counting board to process the provisional ballots.   
 

At 8:30 a.m. the Board reconvened to certify the results of 

the canvass and turned the meeting over to Ms. Fager.  Mr. Whitesel 

moved, seconded by Mr. Bogner, to approve and sign as the Board of 

Canvassers the abstract that certified the results for the March 

19th, 2024, Presidential Preference Primary Election.  The motion 

was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.    

 

 At 8:32 a.m. the Board of Canvassers recessed until 9:00 a.m. 

for the agenda meeting in the Reno County Courthouse Veteran’s 

Room. 

Approved:  

  ________________________________________ 

Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

(ATTEST) 

__________________________     ________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 



31 
 
 

 

 



 
 

24 
 

March 13th, 2024 

Reno County Courthouse 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held an agenda session 

with Chairman Randy Parks, Commissioner Don Bogner, Commissioner 

John Whitesel, and Commissioner Ron Hirst, County Counselor 

Patrick Hoffman, County Administrator Randy Partington, and 

Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present. Commissioner Daniel Friesen 

was present on a zoom call. 

 

The meeting began at 9:00 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance 

followed by a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Craig Waetke 

New Covenant Presbyterian Church.  

 

 Casey Swarts, 207 Buckskin Drive, Hutchinson commented on a 

conversation with Representative Joe Siewert regarding solar 

regulations.  He stated there was no evidence of pollution or other 

issues from solar farms on thousands of acres across the United 

States. It would benefit the community, stimulate our economy and 

it would give endless possibilities.  Solar farms make good 

neighbors if allowed to produce energy.  Our future is too 

important to keep turning down energy solutions in Reno County. 

 

There were no additions or revisions to the agenda.  

 

Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Bogner, to approve the 

consent agenda consisting of items 6A through 6F which includes 

the: (6A) Accounts Payable Ledger for claims payable on March 8th, 

2024, totaling $317,790.75; Accounts Payable Ledger for claims 

payable on March 15th, 2024, totaling $595,668.92; (6B) approval 

of a purchase of five 2025 Ford Police Interceptors from Midwest 

Superstore for the amount of $44,909 each for a total of $224,545; 

(6C) approve Noxious Weed Annual Management Plan and Eradication 

Progress report; (6D) approval of BOCC final minutes for January 

10th, 24th, and 31st, 2024 and drafted minutes for February 14th and 

28th, 2024; (6E) approve the Kansas Rehabilitation Tax Credits Bid 

Award; (6E) approve agreement with Kirkham Michael for Engineering 

Services to perform the Biennial Routine Bridge Inspections of the 

FAS & Off-System Bridges; as presented by staff. The motion for 

the consent agenda was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.  

 

 7A.  Bob Fee Travelers Insurance presented an Umbrella 

Proposal as requested by Mr. Whitesel to cover above the insurance 

coverage Reno County has currently. After re-inspecting the jail, 

the Travelers’ maximum excess amount quoted $3 million at a cost 

of $49,213.  The $3 million coverage was all Reno County could 



 
 

25 
 

receive without getting coverage through an additional insurance 

carrier.  Mr. Fee also had a quote for a $1 million dollar policy 

for $15,000 to $17,000. Mr. Partington stated the funds would come 

from the General Fund’s insurance line.  If it was a federal claim 

the coverage would not apply, Reno County carried general Kansas 

state aggregate. Mr. Hoffman stated the biggest claims were from 

the jail and RCAT.  Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, 

to approve the $1 million dollar umbrella policy for the $15 to 

$17 thousand. The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.    

Mr. Whitesel recommended the smaller amount since they had not had 

this type of policy in the past and it would give future 

commissions options to continue or decline coverage.  Mr. Fee 

offered to write a short-term policy since it was already three 

months into this year. 

  

 7B.  Joseph Hammeke Youth Services Director gave his annual 

report.  He explained the presentation starting with stats on the 

detention side then moved into the shelter side.  He said they had 

a recent audit that showed zero violations and a perfect report 

from DCF.  He stated most expenses were paid with money coming 

into the facility from other counties.  The Board questioned the 

data showing two parents with children at Youth Services. Mr. 

Hemmeke stated a big challenge with the youth was the need for 

mental health services.   

 

 7C.  Karla Nichols Reno County Health Director spoke about 

the Reno County Health Department’s (RCHD) Aid-to-Local (ATL) 

Grant Application for $872,103.12, and KDHE Healthy Families 

passthrough grant for $320,000.  The ATL state funding was from 

July 24th through June 25th. She went over the passthrough grant 

stating $160,000 state/$160,000 through other grants.  Mr. 

Whitesel commented he had no issue with grants but did not care 

for children getting vaccines from the Health Department, he 

thought they should be given at a doctor’s office, not the roll of 

government.  Ms. Nichols replied that the hospital, Hutchinson 

Clinic, Prairie Star, pharmacies, and doctor’s offices had all 

requested the Health Department assist with the “Vaccines to 

Children” program. The parents had a choice to vaccinate their own 

children or not.  Mr. Bogner moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to 

approve and sign a signature page for the ATL grant as presented.  

The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 4 to 1 with Mr. 

Whitesel voting no stating he was opposed to the vaccines to kids. 

Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Bogner, to approve the KDHE 

Healthy Families passthrough grant of $320,000 as outlined by 

staff.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0. 

 



 
 

26 
 

 7D.  Mark Vonachen County Planner briefly explained and the 

Board reviewed Planning Case #2023-10 a text amendment to the Reno 

County Zoning Regulations to create Article 25 Limited Solar Energy 

Systems Regulations and add Article 25 to the Table of Contents. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval on 

February 15th, 2024, with a 7-0 vote.  Mr. Vonachen advised the 

Board that buildings could be constructed in the floodplain with 

the proper permits. Mr. Hoffman and the Board had a very long 

discussion on solar issues.  Mr. Whitesel made a motion to 

recommend changes to some of the subject matters and no changes to 

other subject matter sending regulations back to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission to be addressed: 

  

1) Address the potential for industrial pollutants that may 
be generated during the life of the project (See page 3 of 

the City of Wichita memo dated November 9, 2023). 

2) Article 25-108(8)(A) Battery Energy Storage System. 

Specifics should be developed to define the type of 

building materials to use. 

3) Article 25-108 (9)(A) Noise.  Address whether the maximum 

noise level on the outer wall of a non-participating 

landowner’s principal building should be changed to 40 dBA 

or left at 60 dBA. 

4) Article 25-105(2)(A) and Article 25-108(1)(B) 

Circumstances requiring application of a Limited Scale 

Commercial Solar Energy Systems and Additional Required 

Topics To Be Included In Submittals.  Address clarifying 

the language that states all limited scale commercial solar 

projects, whether they are existing or proposed, shall be 

a minimum distance of two miles. 

 

 Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Whitesel, to amend the 

previous motions language: (5) Article 25-107(3) Documents, plans, 

studies, reports, other permits.  Address whether gravel and rock 

should be prohibited when restoring the ground after a limited 

scale solar facility is constructed to say impervious surface.  

The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 4-1 with Mr. Hirst 

opposed.  

 

 Mr. Whitesel moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to approve 

returning regulations to the Planning and Zoning Commission for 

them to address the five subject matters mentioned in the motions 

above. The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.   

 

 The Board requested staff to take the five suggested changes 

to be addressed by the Planning Commission and report back to the 

Commissioners with their recommendations. 



 
 

27 
 

 

 7E. and 7F. The Board sent back item 7D to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission for changes so 7E and 7F were considered null 

and voided.  The Board questioned when the end date for the 

moratorium was. Mr. Hoffman replied it was in effect until July 

1st, 2024.    

  

 Mr. Parks brought up holding meetings or hearings to see 

what direction the public wanted to explore in the unzone areas 

regarding being zoned.  He thought the county as a whole may 

want to be zoned to have a voice for what goes in next to their 

property.  Mr. Hirst commented that all commissioners should 

plan to attend these meetings. Mr. Hoffman stated the meetings 

should be townhall or open house type meetings and that the 

official public hearings should be held in the courthouse. The 

Chair instructed staff to put on the next agenda meeting to 

discuss holding public hearings on unzone areas being the same 

as zoned. 

      

 County Administrator Mr. Randy Partington relayed to the 

Board the award of a $400,000 grant to the Sheriff’s Office.  He 

said now funds could be used for other items instead of using 

their budget. 

 

 At 11:45 a.m. the meeting recessed for five minutes. 

 

The meeting reconvened with all Commissioners, County 

Administrator Randy Partington, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, 

and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present. 

 

 8A. Mr. Partington inquired if there were any questions on 

any of the monthly department reports, there were none.  He     

 

 9. Commissioner Comments: 

  

 Mr. Friesen mentioned speaking with Senator Moran in DC 

regarding a special bridge program to fund repairs or 

replacement of the primary bridge going into Buhler. 

 

 Mr. Bogner commented on attending a fence viewing seminar 

where the speaker was a law professor who gave information on 

the rules of viewing a fence. 

 

 Mr. Whitesel had no comments. 

 

 Mr. Hirst said he viewed the Emergency building in Sedgwick 

County looking at future space options for Sheriff/Emergency 



 
 

28 
 

Management.  Looking at space needs since the courts wanted more 

room and noting that the jail was costing Reno County taxpayers 

more money. The jail used to have 70 inmates awaiting hearings 

and now there were 140 inmates since the courts were backed up.  

The highest expenses to taxpayers were housing, food and 

medical.   

  

 Mr. Parks commented on how the Board conducted meetings to 

make them different in the future. 

  

 Mr. Partington mentioned the Natural Resource Commission 

asked if Reno County wanted to choose a delegate or 

representative to attend a zoom meeting on the Quivira water 

issue next month, Mr. Parks would volunteer to be on the zoom 

call. 

 

 10A.  At 12:00 p.m. Mr. Parks moved for the Board to enter 

executive session until 12:20 p.m. with County Administrator 

Randy Partington, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, the subject 

matter to be legal obligations of the county, and the 

justification for the executive session is to discuss 

confidential legal matters which are protected by attorney-

client privilege, seconded by Mr. Hirst.  The motion was 

approved by a roll call vote of 5-0. 

  

 At 12:20 p.m. the Board extended the executive session for 

10 minutes by consensus. 

 

 At 12:25 p.m. the Board again extended the executive 

session for 5 minutes by consensus. 

   

 At 12:35 p.m. the executive session returned to the regular 

agenda meeting and adjourned until Wednesday, March 27th, 2024, 

at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Approved: 

  

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.C

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Cindy Martin

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
BOCC minutes for April 10th and April 24th, 2024 drafts

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve
2. Make changes
3. Deny

 

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
approve for final copies



40 
 

April 10th, 2024 

Reno County Courthouse 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held an agenda session 

with Chairman Randy Parks, Commissioner Don Bogner, Commissioner 

Daniel Friesen, Commissioner John Whitesel, and Commissioner Ron 

Hirst, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, County Administrator 

Randy Partington, and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present.  

 

The meeting began at 9:00 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance 

followed by a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Richard Haley 

Riverside Baptist Church and Chaplain.    

 

 Chairman Parks read a proclamation proclaiming April 10th, 

2024, as Women’s Basketball 2024 NJCAA Division 1 National 

Champions Team Appreciation Day.  The top-seeded and nationally 

ranked Hutchinson Community College Blue Dragons defeated the 

Northwest Florida State team 88-80 in overtime in the title game 

in Casper, Wyoming, on Monday, April 1, 2024, to earn their first 

National Championship finishing the season with a perfect record 

of 37-0 in their 50th season. Head Coach John Ontjes accepted the 

proclamation on behalf of the team. 

 

 Chairman Parks also read the next two proclamations 

proclaiming the week of April 15th – April 20th, 2024, as “Week of 

the Young Child” and proclaiming the month of April as “National 

Child Abuse Prevention Month”.  Eva Patterson and Hayley Ross from 

Kansas Children Service League, Healthy Families, Kansas Home 

Visiting Program accepted the proclamations thanking the Board. 

 

There were no additions to the agenda.   

 

 Mr. Parks opened the meeting for public comments.   

 

     Miriam Khan-Kitson, 7 Sunflower Avenue, Hutchinson 

representing Hutch & Heart organization spoke about the March 27th 

agenda meeting regarding the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 

(DEI) training. She explained what DEI meant asking the Board to 

resend their previous motion from that agenda meeting.  

 

 County Administrator Mr. Randy Partington clarified Mr. 

Whitesel’s intent was to promote equality. The Board added comments 

regarding the policies intention to train officers and change the 

language adopting the states policy. 

 



41 
 

 Natasha Russell-Iverson, 8 S. Nelson, Hutchinson was 

concerned about the Community Corrections amended policy.  She 

read the meaning of "Critical Race Theory” (CRT) and explained 

what it means.  She also asked the Board to resend their policy 

amendment in question. 

 

 Esmeralda Tovar-Mora, 1404 W. 30th Avenue, Hutchinson agreed 

with Hutch & Harmony regarding DEI training.  She explains what it 

means to minorities, she said everyone has rights even the illegal 

immigrates and urged her fellow supporters to attend the Commission 

sessions every 2nd, 4th, and 5th weeks of each month.  

 

 Brian Davis, 11 S. Main Street, Hutchinson was concerned about 

the Community Corrections policy language and DEI training.  He 

wanted the Board to overturn the vote from the last agenda session 

on this subject. He thought the Board was sending the wrong message 

to Reno County residents and then spoke about leadership decisions. 

 

 Mr. Hirst read the amended language, and, in his opinion, 

everyone was created equal.  Mr. Parks stated DEI information was 

handed down from the state to Community Corrections. 

 

 Randy Regehr Community Corrections Director addressed the 

policy to Community Corrections explaining the policy and how it 

applied.  He said the goal was to help that person or persons to 

move forward helping them with their next goal, treating them with 

respect and fairness. He continued that the state was a standard 

to build on and that they did have DEI training included. 

 

 Mr. Partington stated DEI was training to treat people the 

same, not treating them unfairly, not excluding or banning. 

 

 Kate Ireland, 1300 E. 33rd Apt. 804, Hutchinson, wanted to 

encourage law enforcement to embrace and be aware of the CRT 

education training. CRT is a history of how our systems have been 

made in the United States. 

 

 7A. Mr. Parks interrupted the public comments to allow Reno 

County Sheriff and Police Chaplain Haley to do his PowerPoint 

presentation on a recent visit to Israel with the International 

Conference of Police Chaplains. Chaplain Haley stated he was Jewish 

and was invited along with 23 other chaplains to participate in a 

10-day visit to show solidarity after the October 7th, 2023, attack 

on Israel.  

 

 

 



42 
 

 4. The Board went back to public comments. 

 

 Sylvia Diaz, 3403 Mona Street, Hutchinson, decided to speak 

up in opposition to Mr. Whitesel’s comments at the last agenda 

meeting. She spoke about Superior Holdings having job openings to 

grow the community and supporting families that may want to move 

here.  She reminded the Board that words matter like the mental 

health comments and how that was a harmful statement. 

  

 Ralph Janzen, 8905 E. 69th Avenue, Buhler, he was concerned 

that properties around his would be flooded with the rising of the 

road for the bridge project near Buhler.  He told the story of how 

in 2019 his barn flooded when the river backed up.   

 

 Don Brittain, Public Works Director explained about the road 

at 82nd west of Buhler and Buhler Road south of Buhler.  He said 

part of this grant would be engineered to raise the road and 

enlarge the bridge, so it doesn’t cause any more upstream flooding, 

so the water won’t rise more than now.  He explained the reason it 

floods downstream is the water has nowhere to go so it moves 

upstream flooding as Mr. Janzen described. 

 

 7B.  Kevin Cowan from Gilmore and Bell represents Reno County 

as Bond Counsel.  He explained the resolution authorizing the 

issuance of General Obligation Bonds for the payment of a portion 

of the costs of certain sewer treatment improvements to serve Sewer 

District Nos. 201 (Yoder) and 202 (H.A.B.I.T.).  He said under 

provisions of the Act and Board Resolution Nos. 2023-15 and 2023-

16, the Board has authorized the improvements at an estimated cost, 

including finance and interest costs, of $6,133,100. He further 

explained the bond saying what the project is, that there has been 

a small amount of temporary financing and authorizes more temporary 

financing in the amount of $450,000. This is the first step in the 

process. Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to approve 

resolution #2024-10; A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR THE PAYMENT OF A PORTION OF THE COSTS 

OF CERTAIN SEWER TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS TO SERVE SEWER DISTRICT 

NOS. 201 (YODER) AND 202 (H.A.B.I.T.), RENO COUNTY, KANSAS. The 

motion was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0. 

 

 7C.  Mr. Partington explained the Economic Development policy 

expansion was through discussions with the Chamber of Commerce. 

They have a new 2-year pilot incentive program to try to hire 

either residents from Reno County or hire employees from outside 

the county to relocate here.  Reno County would reimburse the 

company $2,500 per person for relocating to Reno County, however 

requirements must be met.  



43 
 

Staff would work with the Chamber to prove the relocation 

from Superior Holdings so the incentive could be matched by the 

company.   

 

 Debra Teufel Chamber of Hutchinson/Reno County Commerce of 

Greater Hutch spoke on Superior Holding project by adding 50 more 

employees expanding the Cory Road facility. She discussed the 

projects plans for hiring employees from Reno County first, like 

Hutchinson Community College welding students and then having 

skilled people move here registering one of their vehicles in 

Kansas, also spending money in the community.  She thought it was 

a great incentive from Superior Holding.  

 

 Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to approve the 2-

year pilot program as outlined. No vote was taken at this time. 

 

 Mr. Friesen asked to rule on the first point of order, he 

then offered to withdraw his motion to take public comment. 

 

 Mr. Doug Wright Superior Holdings Member of the Board stated 

it would be approximately a 2-year program.  He would like to hire 

as soon as possible the needed employees.  He was hopeful the Board 

would pass this incentive program. 

 

 Joyce Wilson, 905 W. 95th Avenue, Hutchinson was concerned 

with IdeaTek getting $25,000.  Mr. Friesen declined to speak on 

IdeaTek but said he would speak to her after the meeting.   She 

thought the Superior project would be a good program, but taxes 

were going up and up and the residents were having a hard time 

keeping up with taxes.  In her opinion it was creating hardships 

for many people in Reno County.  

 

 Brad Pryor Chairman of Economic Development Advisory 

Committee said he had notes on behalf of Superior Holding program.  

He spoke about the expansion of Superior Boilers over the years 

and how they were a huge asset to the community.  They are 

supporters of growing and expanding our community and are a local 

company that ships their products all over the world and we would 

like to keep companies like this one in Reno County. 

 

Mr. Hirst explained they held the mill levy and other agencies 

were adding to taxes but not at the county level.  

 

 

 

 



44 
 

 Mr. Whitesel clarified his comments in the last agenda 

session.  It was not meant against Superior Holdings, which is an 

excellent company.  His objection was how they were going about 

the contract by not letting the public view that contract and using 

taxpayers’ money for the incentive to businesses. 

 

 Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to approve the pilot 

program as presented. No vote at this time and the Board went into 

a discussion. 

  

The Board discussed more about the incentive program, funds, 

and tax levels not being raised. Mr. Wright answered questions on 

the incentive program. There were shared personal notes by the 

Board members.  The Board is going to pursue more sales tax 

options.  The Board thanked Superior for helping to grow the 

community. 

 

Mr. Friesen motioned to call for the question voting to end 

the discussion. 

 

Mr. Whitesel asked about registration of vehicles and if they 

required proof of changing the driver’s license. Mr. Hoffman 

replied they did have registration of a vehicle not requiring a 

driver's license as proof leaving it up to the Chamber of Commerce. 

 

Mr. Friesen motioned again to call the question. The motion 

passed with a roll call vote of 4-1, with Mr. Whitesel opposed. 

 

The motion to approve the pilot program as presented was 

approved by a roll call vote of 3-2 with Mr. Whitesel and Mr. 

Bogner opposed.   

 

 Mr. Whitesel motioned, seconded by Mr. Parks, to make an 

amendment to the agenda item to change the agreed upon contract to 

add the requirement of changing a driver’s license to an address 

in Reno County.  Mr. Friesen said it had to pass with a super 

majority vote because it is changing the decision of the Board.  

 

Mr. Hoffman commented that this was a new pilot policy, we 

can monitor issues going forward to require a driver’s license, it 

may not be a concern in the future.  Mr. Parks withdrew his second.   

 

Mr. Friesen, 1) most people have a driver’s license, 2) we 

need to get out of the way of business and let them make their own 

decisions.  Mr. Whitesel wanted to state they need some sort of 

documentation.  Mr. Hirst said get government out of the way.  Mr. 

Bogner said this issue was handled through the law already.   



45 
 

At 11:20 a.m. Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, to 

approve the consent agenda consisting of items 6A through 6M which 

includes the: (6A) Accounts Payable Ledger for claims payable on 

April 5th, 2024, totaling $428,961.90; Accounts Payable Ledger for 

claims payable on April 12th, 2024, totaling $1,540,162.29; (6B) 

and also consisting of pending Added, Abated and Escaped Taxation 

Change Orders numbered 2024-883 needing BOCC approval; (6C) 

approve to declare Fire District #6’s 1982 GMC chassis VIN 

1GDT9C4C9CV578478 as surplus to be sold on Purple Wave Auction and 

authorize the County Administrator to sign the title; (6D)  approve 

amending the price for a brush truck for Reno County Fire District 

#8 from $143,000 to $150,000; (6E) approve a resolution #2024-06; 

A RESOLUTION DETACHING CERTAIN TERRITORY FROM RENO COUNTY FIRE 

DISTRICT NO. 8 AND ATTACHING SAID TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF 

HUTCHINSON, KANSAS; (6F) approve Planning Case #2024-01 A request 

by Frederick III and Arelie Craig (Applicant: Garber Surveying 

Service, PA) for a Homestead Agricultural Lot Split as provided 

for under Article 3-106 of the Reno County Subdivision Regulations. 

A resolution #2024-07; A RESOLUTION APPROVING A HOMESTEAD 

AGRICULTURAL LOT SPLIT TO DIVIDE OFF AN EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY 

DWELLING ON A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M. IN RENO 

COUNTY, KANSAS; (6G) approve Planning Case #2023-02 A request by 

the Wewe Family Trust (Carl Wewe) and Adam & Leah Ekeler to vacate 

a 60-foot-wide road right-of-way with a 70-foot radius cul-de-sac 

located adjacent to lots 29-36 in Shel-Walk Lacres Subdivision. A 

resolution #2024-08; A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE VACATION OF GIL 

COURT, A 60-FOOT-WIDE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED IN SHEL-WALK 

LACRES, A SUBDIVISION LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 

NORTHWEST QUARTER – SECTION 27, T26S, R5W OF THE 6TH P.M., RENO 

COUNTY, KANSAS; (6H) approve resolution #2024-09; A RESOLUTION 

CONTINUING THE TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON SOLAR ENERGY PROJECT 

DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS; 

AND TERMINATING THE MORATORIUM ON THE ZONED PORTION OF RENO COUNTY 

FOR LIMITED SCALE SOLAR PROJECTS; (6I) approve the Community 

Corrections/Youth Services FY25 Juvenile Comprehensive Plan Grant 

Application to Kansas Department of Corrections; (6J) approve the 

renewal application for a Cereal Malt Beverage License for 

Hutchinson Recreation Commission DBA Fun Valley Sports Complex for 

ON PREMISES Sales in the amount of $125.00; (6K) approval of 

Treasurer’s checks issued for the Purchase of Building to house 

Reno County Emergency Medical Services (EMS); (6L) approval of 

Treasurer’s check issued for KDHE Emissions Fee; (6M) approval to 

destroy 2021 City/School Election Material; amended by staff. The 

motion for the consent agenda was approved by a roll call vote of 

5-0.  

 



46 
 

 8A. County Administrator Randy Partington asked the Board 

if there were any questions with this month’s department 

reports, there were no questions.  He mentioned HPO training on 

April 29th and 30th, 2024 for leadership training. 

  

 9.  Commissioner Comments: 

  

 Mr. Hirst mentioned KCAA in Pittsburg stating the Board may 

want to attend.  

  

 Mr. Whitesel spoke about the City/County meeting after the 

agenda meeting today in the Veterans Room, and that the public 

was welcome to stay. He said children, in his opinion, were much 

better off being with a parent than in a day care if possible.  

He spoke about pre-school program studies. 

 

 At 11:25 a.m. the meeting adjourned until Wednesday, April 

24th, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 

 

Approved: 

  

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



47 
 

April 24th, 2024 

Reno County Courthouse 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held an agenda session 

with Chairman Randy Parks, Commissioner Don Bogner, Commissioner 

Daniel Friesen, Commissioner John Whitesel, and Commissioner Ron 

Hirst, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, County Administrator 

Randy Partington, and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present.  

 

The meeting began at 9:00 a.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance 

followed by a short sectarian prayer led by John Walker 

Superintendent Central Christian School. 

 

Chairman Parks read a proclamation for “National Police 

Week”.  Sheriff Darrian Campbell accepted the proclamation 

thanking the Board. 

 

Chairman Parks read a proclamation for “Crime Victim Rights 

Week”.  Andrew Davidson and Sarah McReynolds from the District 

Attorney’s Office accepted the proclamation thanking the Board.  

Mr. Davidson invited the Board and the public to attend a 

presentation for Victims Rights Week at the South Hutchinson 

Community Center on Thursday April 25th, 2024, 2:30 p.m. to 6:30 

p.m. 

 

Kari Mailloux Hutchinson Community Foundation spoke about 

“Match Day”. This event happens every four years and is an 

opportunity to educate the community about endowments.  On May 1st, 

2024, they put up $100,000 match pool for all gifts made to 38 

non-profit endowments that day. These endowments are long term 

savings accounts for many organizations. 

 

Jenna Fager, Deputy Election Clerk spoke about the March 19th, 

2024, Presidential Preference Primary cost per voter of $18.70.  

There were 2,950 voters that voted out of 42,000 for a total cost 

of $55,168.53 to be reimbursed from the State. 

 

Adrienne Moore Baxter, 1902 Westbrook Drive, Hutchinson is 

concerned about organic waste and its disposal.  She would like to 

see a recycle program for the waste.   

 

 Mr. Whitesel requested to move consent agenda item #6E 

appointment of Susan Kauffman to serve a three-year term on the 

Council on Aging to a business item #7C.  

 



48 
 

 Mr. Friesen requested to add to next week’s agenda for the 

moratorium associated with residential solar, they did not close 

the discussion.  Chairman Parks directed staff to add the 

discussion to next week’s agenda.  Mr. Hoffman stated the 

moratorium did not apply to roof top solar in the zoned area. 

  

Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, to approve the 

consent agenda consisting of items 6A through 6G which includes 

the: (6A) Accounts Payable Ledger for claims payable on April 19th, 

2024, totaling $712,316.99; Accounts Payable Ledger for claims 

payable on April 26th, 2024, totaling $257,112.95; (6B) approve to 

declare Reno/Kingman Joint Fire District #1’s (Pretty Prairie) 

2002 Ford F450 brush truck as surplus to be sold on Purple Wave 

Auction and authorize County Administrator to sign the title; (6C) 

approve the appointment of a new Fire Chief for Reno County Fire 

District #7; (6D)  approve Reno/Kingman Fire District Joint #1’s 

purchase of four new Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) 

from Municipal Emergency Services for a total of $41,881.40; (6F) 

approve the ARPA Agreement with Hutchinson Regional Medical Center 

(Reno County EMS); (6G) approve Planning Case #2023-10; resolution 

#2024-11; A RESOLUTION REVISING AND UPDATING THE APRIL 2016 EDITION 

OF THE RENO COUNTY ZONING REGULATIONS BY AMENDING THE TABLE OF 

CONTENTS, CREATING ARTICLE 25 AND INCORPORATING BY REFERENCE NEW 

REGULATIONS; as amended by staff. The motion for the consent agenda 

was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.  

 

7A.  Sheriff Darrian Campbell gave his annual report to the 

Board.  He spoke about the (1) jail staffing, programs, numbers of 

inmates (2) patrol staffing, equipment, and activity and (3) the 

detective divisions. He spoke about projects and is working on two 

grants that could potentially save the county a 1/2 million 

dollars.  Mr. Whitesel questioned if there was progress working 

with courts and district attorney regarding reduction of jail 

population with inmates that don’t pose a danger to the general 

public.    

 

Mr. Friesen suggested the Stepping Up Council is where these 

questions are raised, he as a commissioner pushes the issue each 

quarter when they meet. He said United Way drives the meetings so 

he will make sure all commissioners are on the date list.  

 

Members of the Board thanked the Sheriff for all his hard 

work, for working together with the city, and starting up the drug 

task force again.  

 

 



49 
 

7B. Kevin Cowan Gilmore and Bell Bond Council for Reno County 

recommended approval for a resolution.  The county commission 

approved a resolution on April 10th that authorized the issuance 

of general obligation bonds for the payment of a portion of sewer 

treatment improvements for the 201 (Yoder) and 202 (H.A.B.I.T.) 

sewer systems.  Therefore, to provide for the sale of terms and 

details of the temporary notes, you are being asked to approve the 

attached resolution #2024-12; A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF TAXABLE GENERAL 

OBLIGATION TEMPORARY NOTES, SERIES 2024, OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS; 

PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF AN ANNUAL TAX, IF 

NECESSARY, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST 

ON SAID NOTES AS THEY BECOME DUE; MAKING CERTAIN COVENANTS AND 

AGREEMENTS TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT AND SECURITY THEREOF; AND 

AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER DOCUMENTS AND ACTIONS CONNECTED 

THEREWITH.  Adopt resolution 2024-12 and authorize the Chair to 

sign along with the Board the necessary closing documents related 

to the temporary notes.  He explained Idle Funds and said the 

interest rate was 3.5 interest rate.  The temporary notes and all 

costs related to the sewer districts will be paid by the customers 

of the districts.  The county staff was working on financing 

details for the entire project that will also repay the temporary 

notes issued in 2023 and 2024.  Mr. Friesen moved, seconded by Mr. 

Bogner, to approve resolution #2024-12 and authorize the Chair to 

sign related documents for the temporary notes as described by Mr. 

Cowan.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0.   

 

7C. This consent item was (6E) approve the appointment of 

Susan Kauffman to serve for a three-year term on the Council on 

Aging.  Mr. Whitesel stated there were four seats open for the 

Council on Aging and one applicant.  He objected since the Board 

did not get to interview the applicant. Mr. Friesen moved, seconded 

by Mr. Hirst, to approve the appointment of Susan Kauffman.  The 

motion was approved by a 4-1 vote with Mr. Whitesel opposed.  

 

 At 9:50 a.m. Mr. Parks moved the board enter executive session 

until 10:15 a.m. with the County Administrator Randy Partington 

and County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, the subject matter to be 

legal obligations of the county and the justification for the 

executive session is to discuss confidential legal matters which 

are protected by attorney-client privilege, seconded by Mr. 

Friesen.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 5-0. 

 

 8A. County Administrator Randy Partington asked the Board 

if there were any questions with this month’s department 

reports, there were no questions.  The 2023 County Engineer’s 

Annual Report was attached to the packet.   



50 
 

 He reviewed the FY2023 Financial unaudited report and 

department fund reports. He commented on having a roundtable 

conversation for a mayor meeting in May or June finding a date 

or two in an evening.  Mr. Friesen asked if there was a way to 

get input from the mayor’s focusing on the areas the commission 

could assist with solutions.  Possible topics were NRP, housing 

study, and road & bridge information.  Public Works Director Don 

Brittain is a good resource for grants regarding water and 

sewer.  Mr. Partington stated that he speaks with department 

heads regarding budgets, making suggestions or changes before 

bringing those drafted budgets to the commission.  The Board 

will discuss budgets for departments and outside agencies on May 

29th and asked Mr. Partington to provide options. 

 

 9.  Commissioner Comments: 

  

 Mr. Friesen read a few good ideas from a letter by Sharon 

Hixson.  He requested Mr. Partington sign Mr. Bogner, Mr. Parks, 

and himself up for a rematch in the goat milking contest. 

 

 Mr. Bogner attended the KCCA meeting in Pittsburgh last 

week and he attended the breakout for a 30-30 group.  He was 

also asking the public to dispose of batteries properly through 

hazardous waste, so the possibility of a fire could be avoided. 

 

 Mr. Hirst attended the KCCA meeting also. He went to the 

30-30 program and is still on the way just a different version.  

He had several different subjects.  He thanked all employees and 

should support them in all departments. 

 

 Mr. Parks also attended the KCCA meeting.  He spoke about 

federal and state funds with grant money, the bigger the project 

the better the chance for the grant funds.   

 

 At 10:50 a.m. the meeting adjourned until Wednesday, May 

8th, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 

Approved: 

  

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 
 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.D

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Kyle Berg

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Purchase one 2024 Ford Maverick from Midway Motors in the amount of $28,759 for the Sheriff's
Department and declare a 2014 Ford F150 (1FTFW1EF0EKE90611) as surplus to be either auctioned
on Purple Wave or traded in. Would also like to authorize County Administrator Randy Partington to
sign the title work.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Sheriff's Department currently has a 2014 Ford F150 in the Admin/Detective division with
approximately 131,000 miles that is due for replacement. This is a budgeted replacement out of the
special equipment fund for 2024. The current vehicle has been averaging 15,792 miles per year at 13.31
miles per gallon. By going with this smaller more fuel-efficient vehicle this vehicle should decrease
fuel usage by around 600 gallons per year or $1800 @ 3 dollars per gallon. 

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve the purchase
2. Deny the purchase

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Purchase one 2024 Ford Maverick from Midway Motors in the amount of $28,759 for the Sheriff's
Department and declare a 2014 Ford F150 (1FTFW1EF0EKE90611) as surplus to be either auctioned
on Purple Wave or traded in. Would also like to authorize County Administrator Randy Partington to
sign the title work.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
This purchase was budgeted for out of the 2024 special equipment fund.



QOUTES FOR 2024 FORD MAVERICK FOR SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

National Auto Fleet Group Midway Motors Midwest Ford
2024 Ford Maverick XLT AWD 2024 Ford Maverick XLT AWD 2024 Ford Maverick XLT AWD
$30,324.45 $28,759.00 $28,858.00



cno. 
ounty 

120w Avenue 8, Hutchinson, K$67501 
620-694 2585 

Fax 620694 2767 

REQUEST FOR QUOTE RENO 

COUNTY AUTOMOTIVE 

SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

ONE-2024 FORD MAVERICK XL AWD SUPERCREW 121.1 W8 4.5' BOX 

Reno County Atoeotie will accept quotes o this for aytire be foe 1000am, Tuesday, April 
004%o 

RENO COUNTY AUTOMOTIVE 

120 WEST ANES 

HUTCHINSON, KANSAS 67501 

p] stsct.arose s 
The Automotive Director or his des#gnee will open the quotes at this time at the address above 
electronic tubeniss.ions 1nary also be accepted4the vendor ners.tads adagees that$aid 
submissions will not maintain the sane level of confidentiality as the ealed bid. Electronic 
submissions ae to be sent to sear4 these specifications are written with 
the intention of obtaining quotes oele equip«net This equipment sh.al have nee 04 model 
equipped standard equipment and meeting or exceeding the following 

2024 FORD MAVERICK (WBB) XLT AWD SUPERCREW 
ICONIC SILVER METALLC 

2.0EC0BOOST 

8-SPEED AUTOMATIC 

With all standard options plus: 



Ve hi le Configuration Options 

ENGl 

ode Description 
999 Engine. 2 OL Eco8Boost. (STD) 

TRAN MISSION 

code Description 
V 448 Transmission 8-Speed Automatic (STD) 

WHEE s 

Code Description 
• 64T Wheels 17 Carbonized Gray Painted Aluminum, (STD) 

RES 

ode Description 
V T7R Tees 225/65R17 ANS BSW 

PRIMA Y PAINT 

Code Description 
✓ JS Iconic Silver Metallic 

SEAT PE 

Code Description 

V Navy Pier/Medium Slate Unique Cloth Front Bucket Seats. -inc. manual 6-way 
78 adjustable driver and 4-way manual adjustable passenger, front floor console wle.Shifter 

armrest and storage bin 

AXLE R TIO 

/ 
Code Description 

Upgraded Drive Ratio 
ADDI NAL EQUIPMENT 

Code Description 

,/ 4K Tow Package. inc Taler Hitch Receiver pin connector Upgraded Drive Ratio 
530 Upgraded Cooling F an. higher Capacity Radiator Full Size Spare Tire. Transmission Oil 

Cooler, Trailer Brake Controller Tires 225/65R17 A/S BSW 
510 Fut Size Spare Tire 
OPTION ACKAGE 

Code [Description 

of Io 1 04.76 '" 



of 0 

Equipment Group 300A Standard 



930.wg+SuprCrw Aw.0 Qr«r Sunny Ti of Preview 042$/2024 1018$1 Receipt. NA 

Der p 0rd Code 9302 

10Al BASE CL£ 

CONIC SALVE ME ALA 

0Lo 

8uf 

EQUIPMENT 300.4 

RIM 

2.0l EC0BOO £NGIN£ 

8$0 Au10 I$50N 

TOTAL SASE A ID 0IONS 

DISCOUNTS 
TOTAL 

it Coed G.3 

$.4 OEST\ON 

$26315 4 I0w MAG 

$0 FU $a£ .M£ IRE 

$2631$ $0 $AT£ £IS5ON 

$0 CE Co(SSO Np4ATOR 

$0 EMAMKS TRAILER 

$0 gP&CA LET ACCOUNT CREDIT 

$2220 Fut CAGE 

$0 CED DORA 

$0 ADVERTISING ASSESS(NT 

$0 DES TATON& DEVERY $1595 

0830 £ND USER F- 08 30 

NC&NTINES 
Acc.Code lb Coetnet/'Ref 08999. $%4 0ate 07/1423$t¢ $ 

heel4no bes.untetet orb.e. 
hi#snot a irole 



County reserves the night to waive minor technicalities under this specification, an 
reject any or all quotes, which, in ts opinion, is in the best interest of Reno County 

equipment shall be delivered F.0.B. to Hutchinson,Ks 

tat Cash Price: 

it Pnice 

arranty 

itimated Delivery Date 4o S .+l 
pany Name 

Si nature 

Er lose any additional materials or lustrations that would assist in the clarification of 
ur quote specifications. 

It +our quote is accepted, payment wtt be made on the county's next regular payment day 
at{er (delivery and certification that specifications were met 

Ky.e Berg 

West Ave B 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

6 94-2585 



eno@. 
ounty 

120w Awenue 8. Hutchinson,K$6750 
620694 2585 

Fax 620694276.7 

REQUEST FOR QUOTE RENO 

COUNTY AUTOMOTIVE 

SPECIFICATIONS FOR 

ONE-2024 FORD MAVERICK XL AWD SUPERCREW 12L.1" WB 4.5' BOX 

Reno County Automotive wt accept quotes on thi for tire betote 1000en, Tuesday, pol 
0 26o 

RENO COUNTY AUTOMOTNE 

120 W1SI AVE B 

HUTCHINSON, KANSAS 6750 

The Auto«note Director gt his esagee wt open the quotes at this tine at the address above 
Electronic subeniions m.also be accepted if the vendor uderstas a0agrees that said 
submissions wt ot mnant the $acne level of coefentalts the sealed bid Electron¢ 
submissions are to be sent tor.lee specifications are written with 
the intention of obtaining quot oe equipment Th equipet sha have nee 04 model 
equipped$taordequpent an feting orecedog the tolow$ 

2024 FORD MAVERICK (W8B) XLT AWD SUPERCREW 
ICONIC SILVER METALLIC 

2.0£COBOOST 

8-SPEED AUTOMATIC 

with all standard options plus: 



Reno County reserves the right to wane minor technicalities under this specification, and 
to reject an or alt quotes, which, in its opinion,is in the best interest of Reno County 

The equipment shall be detiveref_0.8. to Hutchenson, KS 

Total Cash Pace 

unit 9nice 

warrant 

ee 
s 23.858 

s 28,8se 
5¢ 4laded 

Estimate petvery Date 4G ,a+A» 
Company Name. 1oldest 5posh 
bate: // 

/z% 

sow ,i24 
Enclose an additional materials or illustrations that wout assist in the clarification of 

your quote specifications 

lf your quote is accepted, payment wtt be made on the county's next regular payment 0day 
after delivery an certification that specifications were met 

Kyte Berg 

120West Ave B 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

620-694-2585 



Vehicle Configuration Options 

ENGINE 

Code Description 

999 Engine: 2.0L Eco800st, (STD) 

TRANSMISSION 

Code Description 

448 Transmission: 8-Speed Automatic, (STD) 

WHEELS 

Code Description 

64T Wheels 17 Carbonized Gray Painted Aluminum, (STD) 

TIRES 

Code Description 
T7R Tires. 2256517 A/S 8SW 

PRIMARY PAINT 

Code Description 

JS Iconic Silver Metallic 

SEAT TYPE 

Code Description 
Navy Pier/Medium Slate, Unique Cloth Front Bucket Seats, inc: manual G-way 

TB adjustable driver and 4-way manual adjustable passenger, front floor console wle Shifter, 
armrest and storage bin 

AXLE RATIO 

Code Description 

� Upgraded Drive Ratio 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT 

Code Description 
4K Tow Package, inc Trailer Hitch Receiver, 7-pin connector, Upgraded Drive Ratio 

530 Upgraded Cooling Fan, Higher Capacity Radiator, F ult Size Spare Tire, Transmission Oil 
Cooler, Trailer Brake Controller, Tires: 225465R17 A/S BSW 

510 Full Size Spare Te 
OPTION PACKAGE 

Code [Description 

I804 7404 



[3ooA [Equipment Group 300A Standard 

418284.«AM 



Sell, service, and deliver letter https /nationalautofleetgroup.com.OrderRequest/ssDPrint 3801s 

National Auto Fleet Group 
6h..44. 

4gg Auto Center peve. Watsonville CA9$076 
(855)289-6s72+(831)480.84gr Fr 
flt4tromtutofltGreag con 

I 
4/18/2024 Quote ID 38011 

Order Cut Off Date. TBA 

$550.55 

Total Savings Total % 
Savings 
1783% 

One Unit One Unit 
(MSRP) 

$30,875.00 $30,324.45 

$0.00 
$0.00 

$30,324.45 

Contract Price 

Tax (0.0000 %) 

Tire fee 
Total 

Kyle Berg 
Reno County 
Reno County Automotive 

120 West Ave B 

Hutchinson, Kansas, 67501 

Dear Kyle Berg, 
National Auto Fleet Group is pleased to quote the following vehicle(s) for your consideration 
One (1) New/Unused (2024 Ford Maverick (W8J) XLT AWD SuperCrew121.1" WB 4.5' Box, ) and delivered to 

your specified location, each for 

- per the attached specifications 

This vehicle(s) is available under the Sourcewell (Formerly Knowns NJPA) Contract 091521.NAF Please 
reference this Contract number on all purchase orders to National Auto Fleet Group. Payment terms are Net 2O 
days after receipt of vehicle 

Thank you in advance for your consideration. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate lo Call 

Sincerely, 

Jesse Cooper 
Account Manager 
Email: Fleet@NationalAutoF leeGroup.com 
O#fee: (855) 289-6572 
Far. (831) 480-8497 

@ 
TOYOTA 

4/182024, 7.50 AM 
l of 10 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.E

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Mark Vonachen - County Planner II

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Resolution 2024_____ Planning Case #2024-03 - A request and Resolution by Unified School District
#313 (Applicant: Landmark Architects) for a conditional use permit to establish a daycare center on a
parcel of land zoned R-1 - Rural Residential District.  The property is located at 509 E. 56th Avenue
which is at the southeast corner of N. Plum Street and E. 56th Avenue

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The owner requests a conditional use permit to establish a daycare center.  The daycare center will be
located in an existing building which was previously used as a church.
 
The parcel is approximately 3.08 acres of land   The proposed daycare will be licensed for up to 59
children and range in age from 0-5 years old.  A fenced-in playground will be located on the east side of
the building.  The proposed hours of operation will be from 7:30am to 6:00pm Monday through Friday. 
The daycare will be open year-round, not just during the school year.  Interior remodeling of the
building has commenced because no zoning permit is required to remodel the interior of a building. 
The conditional use permit is required to operate a daycare land use inside the building.
 
The owner has decided to install a new wastewater system on the property due to the uncertainty of the
age and condition of the existing system.  The owner is working with the Environmental Division on
the permitting process.  The new wastewater system will be located west of the parking lot.  The owner
is also working on the permitting process for a daycare center with the Health Department, Kansas
Department of Health and Environment, and the Fire Marshall's Office.
 
On April 18, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on this petition.  The Planning
Commission heard concerns from staff and the public regarding noise, parking stalls, traffic backing up
on the roads, and traffic flow on the property.  Details of those discussions are contained in the staff
report.  At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the
request by a 5-0 vote based on the nine factors listed in the staff report.  The Planning Commission
attached nine conditions of approval and recommended granting the waiver request requiring the owner
to permanently pave the parking lot.  The Planning Commission recommended denial of the waiver
request to provide only fifteen parking stalls and instead recommended the owner provide twenty-five
parking stalls.
 
The County Counselor has reviewed the included resolution and approved of the way it is written.



ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve the resolution and request as recommended by the Planning Commission
2.  Approve of the request and modify the Factors or conditions of approval
3.  Deny the request based on the Factors listed in the staff report
4.  Return the request back to the Planning Commission with specific questions to be answered
5.  Table the request for further review

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the resolution and request as recommended by the Planning Commission







































































AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.F

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Mark Vonachen - County Planner II

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Resolution 2024____ Planning Case #2024-04 - A request by the Central Kansas Gun Club of Reno
County, Inc. (Applicant: Nex-Tech Wireless) for a conditional use permit to construct a not-to-exceed
220-foot-tall self-support telecommunication tower and place a temporary 150-foot-tall cell-on-wheels
(COW) on a parcel of land zoned AG - Agricultural District.  The property is located at 7908 N.
Lorraine Street which is approximately 3/4 of a mile north of the intersection of E. 69th Avenue and N.
Lorraine Street.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The applicant requests a conditional use permit to construct a not to exceed 220-foot-tall
telecommunication tower.  If approved, the applicant will first place a temporary 150-foot-tall tower on
the lease area while the materials for the permanent tower are being shipped.  The length of time the
temporary tower is on site will be determined if the conditional use permit is approved and when the
permanent tower materials are shipped.
 
 The parcel of land is approximately 76.95 acres of land.  The current land use occurring on the property
is a shooting range for pistols, shotguns, and rifles.  The owner and applicant discussed potential
locations on the property to locate a telecommunication tower.  The proposed location on the site plan
was determined to be the best location that keeps the tower out of danger of being hit by a bullet from
the shooting range.
 
The FAA determined the tower location will not be a hazard to aircraft.  The FAA will require the
tower to have lights.  The tower will have a fence to aid in preventing unauthorized access.  State
Statute limits the ability to review some common concerns when considering placement of a
telecommunication tower.  
 
On April 18, 2024, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on this petition.  The Planning
Commission heard concerns from the public regarding property values, taxes, electro-magnetic
radiation, location, and other concerns listed in the staff report.  The Planning Commission initially
made a motion to table the request so different locations could be investigated.  That motion failed by a
3-2 vote.  A motion to approve of the petition as presented was approved by a 4-1 vote based on the
eleven factors.  The Planning Commission attached seven conditions of approval.
 
The County Counselor has reviewed the included resolution and approved of the way it is written.



ALL OPTIONS:
1.  Approve the resolution and request as recommended by the Planning Commission
2.  Approve of the request and modify the Factors or conditions of approval
3.  Deny the request based on the Factors listed in the staff report
4.  Return the request back to the Planning Commission with specific questions to be answered
5.  Table the request for further review

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the resolution and request as recommended by the Planning Commission

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
 
 
 













































































































RESOLUTION 2024- 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 220-FOOT TALL TELECOMMUNICATION 

TOWER ON A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 5 WEST OF THE 

6TH P.M. IN RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Central Kansas Gun Club of Reno County, Inc, by and through, 

Nex-Tech Wireless, applied for a Conditional Use Permit to construct a not to exceed 220-

foot-tall self-support telecommunication tower upon a defined parcel of land more 

particularly described as follows: 

A tract located in the NW ¼ of Section 17, T22S, R5W of the 6th PM., in 

Reno County, Kansas as more fully described on that trustee’s deed filed in 

Book 586 on page 150 of the Office of Reno County Register of Deeds on 

September 8, 2006, which is incorporated herein by reference as if more 

fully set out. 

 

 WHEREAS, said parcel is currently zoned AG – Agricultural District for 

agricultural use in accordance with the Reno County Zoning Regulations; and a 

telecommunication tower land use is permitted in the AG Zoning District with a 

Conditional Use Permit; and 

 WHEREAS, the Reno County Planning Commission conducted a public hearing 

on the Application on April 18, 2024, following satisfaction of all notice requirements for 

such hearing as required by K.S.A. 12-757; and 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing all interested parties in attendance were provided 

an opportunity to be heard; and the Reno County Planner presented a written report for the 

Conditional Use Permit dated April 11, 2024, which report, under the heading 

“FACTORS”, included a discussion and applications to be considered when making land 

use decisions pursuant to Golden v. City of Overland Park, 224 Kan. 591.  Additionally, 



the Reno County Planner presented a staff recommendation in support of the Application; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Reno County Planning Commission adopted and recommended 

approval of the Conditional Use Permit with conditions based upon the Reno County 

Planner’s analysis of the “FACTORS” to be considered pursuant to Golden and other 

factors as outlined in the Reno County Zoning Regulations numbered one through eleven 

inclusive; and 

WHEREAS, the Reno County Planning Commission also recommended granting 

a waiver from the setback requirement as found in Article 15-105(52)(A) based on the 

stamped engineered letter from Sabre Industries and pursuant to Article 20-104 (2) of the 

Zoning Regulations; and, 

 WHEREAS, on May 22, 2024, the Reno County Commission at its regular public 

meeting received a Summary Report dated May 6, 2024, of the proceedings before the 

Reno County Planning Commission and the Planning Commission’s recommendation of 

approval of the Conditional Use Permit with special conditions and a waiver of the setback 

requirement; and 

WHEREAS, upon conclusion of the Board’s deliberations, Commissioner 

_______________ moved to approve the Planning Commission’s recommendation for 

approval of the Conditional Use Permit along with all of the special conditions and the 

waiver as recommended by the Planning Commission.  In support of his motion, 

Commissioner _______________ cited “FACTORS” numbered one through eleven 

inclusive found in the analysis presented within the Reno County Planner’s Summary 

Report.  Commissioner _______________ seconded the motion.  The motion was 

approved by unanimous vote. 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS, that the above and foregoing 

findings are adopted as the decision of this Board.  The aforesaid Conditional Use Permit 

Application made by Nex-Tech Wireless is approved subject to all of the aforementioned 

special conditions. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be effective from and after its 

publication in the official county newspaper. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED in regular session this 22nd day of May 2024. 

 

     BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

     OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS 

 

 

     ________________________________________ 

     Randy Parks, Chairman 

 

 

     ________________________________________ 

     Don Bogner, Member 

 

 

     ________________________________________ 

     Ron Hirst, Member 

 

 

     ________________________________________ 

     Daniel Friesen, Member 

 

 

     ________________________________________ 

     John Whitesel, Member 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________ 

Donna Patton, County Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.G

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Helen Foster, Human Resources Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Revision of the Electronic Media, Mobile Device Security, and Training Policy

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
This is a revision to the current policy in place.  This policy was previously adopted in May of 2017. 
Since this date, Information Service's name was changed to Information Technology.  The corrections
for this change have been made in the policy.  
 
This policy also had an addition to the Security Awareness training section to outline the in-person
annual training that will begin taking place.  Information Technology will be starting an in-person
annual security training for all employees currently employed by Reno County.  This training will be
extended to new hires on their first day of employment before they are given network access.  This is to
educate and equip our employees with the tools necessary to recognize security threats.  Employees will
be expected to successfully pass testing before network access will be granted.  

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve as presented
2. Make recommendations for a revision to the presented policy

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the Policy as presented.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
This policy has been revised to include annual in-person network training for all employees and to
include the process that will be completed if an network user is unable to successfully pass the network
training.
 
The department name for Information Services has been changed to reflect the department name as
Information Technology.
 
No Fiscal Impact



1 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Electronic Media, Mobile Device Security, and Training 

 

RESOLUTION DATE: May 22, 2024   
 

 
 
 
 

 PAGES: 
10 

 

  

 

RELATED POLICIES:  
Electronic Media and Mobile Device 
Security and Training – 5/16/17 
 

 

DEPARTMENTS PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE:  ALL 

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS: 

BOARD CHAIRMAN: 
     

 
Randy Parks (DATE)    

BOARD MEMBER 
     

 Daniel Friesen (DATE)    
 
BOARD MEMBER 

 
 

    

 Don Bogner (DATE)    
 
BOARD MEMBER 

 
 

    

 John Whitesel (DATE)    

BOARD MEMBER 
 
 

    

 

Ron Hirst (DATE) 
 
 

   

 

1.0 PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
 

Reno County encourages all employees using Information Technology to become proficient in its use.  

Information Technology includes internet access, electronic and voice message systems, facsimile devices, and 
other electronic systems used by Reno County.  This policy applies to all departments, contracted entities, and 

other individuals or groups, which use County equipment. This policy establishes the principles which govern the 
safety of County owned data when accessed by employees while using either personal or County owned 

equipment in the course of their employment.  A County department may develop more specific Information 

Technology policies for application within the department, but none may develop nor apply more lenient policies. 
 

 

2.0 GENERAL ELECTRONIC MEDIA AND COMMUNICATION SERVICES AND PROCEDURES 
 

2.1 The procedures outlined below apply to all electronic media and communication services which are: 
 

a) accessed on or from County premises; or 
b) accessed using County computer equipment, or via County paid access methods; or 

c) used in a manner which identifies the individual with the County; or 
d) accessed or used during an employee’s scheduled work hours. 

 

2.2 Electronic media and communication services may not be used for knowingly transmitting, retrieving 
or storing any communications of a discriminatory or harassing nature, or which are derogatory to 

any individual or group, or which are obscene, or are of a defamatory or threatening nature, or for 
“chain letters”, or for any purpose which is illegal or prohibited by County Policy or contrary to the 

County’s interest. 

 
2.3 The content of electronic information created or communicated by an employee using e-mail, word 

processing, utility programs, spreadsheets, voice mail, telephones, Internet access, etc., will not generally 
be monitored by the County.  However, the following conditions should be noted: 



2 

 
a) The County will routinely monitor usage patterns for both voice and data communications (e.g., 

number called or site accessed; call length; times of day calls).  Reasons for monitoring shall include 
cost analysis/allocation, management of County technological voice/data resources and abuse or 

misuse detection. 

b) A request to monitor use of data communications to Information Technology Department may be 
made by a department head or an elected official and must be authorized by the Director of 

Information Technology.  A copy of all records of data communications produced by the Information 
Technology Department at the request of the department head or an elected official shall be provided 

to the Human Resources Director. 
 

c) The County also reserves the right, in its discretion, to review any employee’s electronic files and 

messages and usage to the extent necessary to ensure that electronic media and communication 
services are being used in compliance with the law and with this and other county policies. 

 
2.4 Employees shall respect the confidentiality of the electronic communications of others.  Examples of 

unauthorized acts include, but are not limited to: 

 
a) attempting to read or “hack” into other systems or other person’s logins; 

b) “cracking” passwords; 
c) breaching computer or network security measures; 

d) monitoring electronic files or communications of other employees or third parties except by explicit 
direction of the County Administrator.  

 

2.5 Employees shall not share passwords at any time.  A user is potentially responsible for the consequences 
of any internet activity initiated by another person using his or her login. 

 
2.6 No e-mail or other electronic communication shall be knowingly sent which attempts to hide the identity of 

the sender or to represent the sender as someone other than the sender. 

 
2.7 Electronic media and communication services shall not be used in a manner that is likely to cause network 

congestion or to significantly hamper the ability of other persons to access and use the system.  Examples 
of such include accessing music files and non-work related video files. 

 

2.8 Anyone obtaining electronic access to outside source material must respect all copyrights and may not 
copy, retrieve, modify or forward copyrighted material except as permitted by the copyright owner or 

utilizing a single copy for reference use only. 
 

2.9 Reno County provides the software which is necessary for conducting Reno County business.  No external 
or additional software may be added to the County’s system without the written permission of the Director 

of Information Technology.  Use of County owned software on employee owned equipment is prohibited. 

 
2.10 Any messages or information sent by an employee to one or more individuals via an electronic network 

(e.g., bulletin board, online service, or Internet) are statements identifiable and attributable to the County.  
While some users may include a personal “disclaimer” in electronic messages, it should be noted that 

there is still a connection with the County, and the statement might still be legally imputed to the County.  

All communications sent by employees via a network must comply with this and other County Policies and 
may not disclose any confidential or proprietary County information. 

 
2.11 Network services and Worldwide Web sites can and do monitor access and usage and can identify at least 

which County Department (and often which specific individual) is accessing their services.  Thus, accessing 
a particular bulletin board or website leaves County identifiable electronic “tracks” even if the employee 

merely reviews or downloads a material and does not post any message.  Employees should be aware of 

this consequence and conduct themselves accordingly. 
 



3 

 
 

 
 

 

 
2.12 Proper use of Internet access includes, but is not limited to the following: 

 
a) downloading job-related information; 

b) sending and receiving job-related e-mail messages and file attachments; 
c) making business arrangements; 

d) searching job-related data bases; 

e) brief personal communications as defined elsewhere in this Policy. 
 

2.13 Reno County provides electronic storage for work related data.  Online Cloud based storage such as 
Dropbox and Google Docs is not allowed without prior authorization from Information Technology.  

 

 

3.0 COUNTY SOCIAL MEDIA  
 

3.1 All Reno County social media sites shall be: 

 

a) approved by the County Administrator and requesting Department Head; and 
b) published using approved County social networking platforms and tools; and 

c) are administered by the Department designee(s).  Designees may be any County employee designated 
by the requesting Department Head that has a complete understanding of the policy and has 

appropriate content and technical experience. 
 

3.2 Reno County Social Media sites shall adhere to applicable state, federal, and local laws, regulations and 

policies including all Reno County Employee Policies and Procedures. 
 

3.3 E-discovery laws and policies apply to social media content and therefore content must be able to be 
managed, stored, and retrieved to comply with these laws. 

 

3.4 Reno County social networking sites are subject to public records laws.  Relevant Reno County records 
retention schedules apply to social networking content.  Records required to be maintained pursuant to a 

relevant records retention schedule shall be maintained for the required retention period in a format that 
preserves the integrity of the original records and is easily accessible using the approved County platforms 

and tools. 
 

3.5 The subject matter of messages should demonstrate good judgment and professionalism.  In addition to 

other prohibitive uses identified elsewhere in this Policy, specifically prohibited are political activity and 
campaigning, religious messages or slogans, illegal activity and personal business enterprise uses. 

 
3.6 Employees shall use care not to divulge confidential or sensitive information to any person who does not 

have the right or need to know. 

 

4.0 PERSONAL USE LIMITATIONS 
 

4.1 Regarding Privacy; No one should expect the right to privacy in the use of County equipment.  Without 

his or her knowledge, access to an individual’s electronic or voice messages, addresses accessed on the 

Internet, or data on County equipment that has been used by an employee may be obtained by the 
appropriate elected official or department head, or designee, for needs arising in the normal course of 

business.  No employee of the Department of Information Technology shall provide access to such 
information unless specifically authorized by the Director of Information Technology. 



4 

 
4.2 Information Technology should be used only for official Reno County business, except as otherwise 

specified herein.  Care should be taken to limit the number of persons not associated with Reno County 
who have knowledge of County e-mail addresses.  This will limit the number of unsolicited, personal and 

offensive messages received.  Server space is limited and should be reserved for Official County business. 

 
4.3 Regarding Email: Brief and occasional messages of a personal nature may be sent and received.  Sending 

chain letters is prohibited.  Personal messages shall not interfere with County business.  Employees shall 
exercise great care to avoid email usage abuse, such as bulk messages, jokes, anecdotes, or gossip. Mass 

mailings and large attachments overload the County’s server, thereby hindering legitimate County 
communications.  

 

 
4.4 Excessive personal use of County’s Internet not only increases the likelihood of introducing virus’s to the 

County’s network but typically reduces productivity of the employee. 
  Internet usage should be limited to County Business.   Department Heads may be asked to account for, or 

explain an employee’s Internet Usage which appears to be outside the scope of the employee’s job duties. 

Examples of prohibited usage include non-county Social Media, online entertainment such as YouTube, 
online shopping or online banking.  Online chat programs or Apps not approved by Information 

Technology are strictly prohibited.  
   

4.5 County printers and paper are not for personal use. 
 

4.6 Unknown sources.  Take extra caution when receiving a message from an unknown source, especially 

from an address exterior to the County’s e-mail system.  The potential to spread viruses is significant, and 
opening such a message could have devastating results to the entire County system.  This also applies to 

attachments.  The principal “when in doubt, throw it out” should be followed or forward the email to 
Information Technology services for review: iamsuspicious@renogov.org 

 

 
 

5.0 SECURITY AWARENESS TRAINING 
 

5.1 Reno County will provide Security Awareness and Training for all Reno County employees accessing Reno 

County IT systems.  Reno County’s Security Awareness and Training addresses roles, responsibilities, 
management commitment, coordination among organizational entities, and compliance.  The training also 

includes general information security training, role based training, system specific training and general 
awareness. 

 
5.2 A variety of methods will be used to deliver Security Awareness and Training to Reno County employees 

regularly throughout the year.  Methods of delivery include, but are not limited to, monthly online 

Training, quizzes posters and newsletters. 
 

5.3 Online training provided by Reno County shall be mandatory on a regular basis. Users not completing the 
training within the required standards may be subject to removal of their network computer rights. 

 

5.4 The Reno County Information Technology Department will document and monitor individual employee’s 
security training to ensure minimum requirements are met. Information Technology will report individuals 

failing to meet the training requirements to Human Resources.  Employee’s not meeting those 
requirements shall have failed to satisfy a basic work requirement and may lose network computer rights 

at a minimum. 

 
5.5 Annual Security Awareness training will be completed in-person and all network users will be required to 

attend.  Information Technology will administer a test after the training and any user found to fail the 
testing, will be referred to an Information Technology staff member for one-on-one training with another 



5 

test to follow.  If the one-on-one training test score is failing, network access will be removed and the user 
will be enrolled in an online training course with a test to follow.  In the case that the user cannot pass 

this the online training course test, Reno County will have no choice but to terminate the employee if 
network access is a vital part of the employee’s job duties. 

 

 

6.0 MOBILE DEVICES – Defined as any device or medium not permanently connected to the Reno County 

network for the purpose of receiving, sending, or storing information. This includes, but is not limited to cell 
phones, laptops, computers, smart phones, tablets, USB Thumb drives, digital storage media (CD, DVD, flash 

drives, floppy disks, hard drives etc.) 

 
6.1 Responsibilities and Enforcement of this Policy: 

 
6.2 Reno County sets forth this Policy in an effort to meet organizational goals, to improve employee 

satisfaction, and improve efficiency for county departments, agencies, courts, authorities, and 
employees by enabling the use of Mobile Devices and enabling those devices with access to county 

resources (such as email). 

 
6.3 Each Reno County employee is responsible for the requirements set forth within this Policy, as well as 

any other employee policy set forth within the Reno County Personnel Policy or elsewhere, and any 
subsequent policy set forth by the department, agency, authority, etc. for which an employee works 

within Reno County, Kansas government.  

 
 

a) The Information Technology Department Director or designee shall oversee all technical aspects of 
enforcing this Policy, including creating and updating all approval forms, etc. which enable mobile 

devices to access county resources. 
 

b) Every user of a Mobile Device with access to the Reno County network shall use reasonable care 

to protect Reno County data and to prevent unauthorized access to the Reno County network. 
 

c) Information used or stored on any Mobile Device shall be considered as important for security as 
any paper document in the operation of county business. 

 

d) Violations of this Policy will subject the Mobile Device to be disconnected from the Reno County 
network. In addition, the violator will be subject to normal departmental and/or county 

enforcement policies, up to and including termination as per the County Personnel Policy. 
 

e) Users are not permitted to plug personally owned devices into any Reno County owned 
equipment. For example, charging a personal cell phone through the USB port on your 

workstation computer. 
 

6.5 County Purchased Mobile Devices 

 
a) All tablets and other mobile computing devices purchased by Reno County for its employees shall 

be approved and purchased through the Reno County Information Technology Department. 
 

b) The need for a County purchased Mobile Device shall be determined by each Department Director 

and must be approved for compatibility purposes by the IT Director. 
 

c) The Information Technology Department shall have sole authority to determine the type and 
model of any Mobile Device that Reno County purchases. 

 

d) Any mobile device owned by Reno County that connects to the Reno County network shall be disk 
encrypted and may be managed by the MDM (Mobile Device Management) software. This includes 



6 

any device that accesses Reno County email, phone system, or other system or resource located 
within the Reno County network. 

 
6.6 Criteria in Connection with the Use of Email on the Reno County Network 

 
a) All requests for email enabled devices are handled through the employee's department and must 

be approved by the Department Director. Employees and Director shall sign the Mobile Device 

Security Request Form and agree to abide by all policy statements within. 
 

b) If the Department Director approves the request, he/she will notify the Information Technology 
Department by completing in a help desk ticket. 

 

c) If at any time an email enabled device is lost or stolen, the employee to whom the device is 
assigned is responsible for immediately reporting the loss to the Information Technology 

Department. The Information Technology Department shall then remotely disable, lock, and/or 
"wipe" the device, thereby rendering the device inoperable. 

 
d) All email enabled devices shall be required to automatically "Lock" after a reasonable period of 

inactivity (no longer than 5 minutes), and must be protected by a password, pin, or a biometric 

feature supported by the device. This is to ensure that a device left unattended will not be used 
by unauthorized persons. 

 
e) Non-Exempt (Hourly) Employees granted access to email on mobile devices shall strictly follow 

work schedules when replying to or sending work related email when not at work or otherwise 

"on the clock” without specific permission by a supervisor.  
 

f) All Department Directors and supervisors must be familiar with the FLSA standards and 
appropriate use of email by Non-Exempt (Hourly) employees during non-scheduled working 

hours.  Contact Human Resources of you have any questions or concerns.  

 
 

 
 

6.7 Bring Your Own Device (BYOD): 

 

6.7.1  In an effort to satisfy demand from Reno County employees and employees of other   

  affiliated entities agencies, and contractors using a Mobile Device to access the Reno County 
  network, Reno County sets forth the following policies to allow for personally owned technology 

  enabled devices including smart phones: 
 

a) There must be a clear business need for access to the Reno County network. 

b) All requests for email enabled devices are handled through the employee's department 

and must be approved by the Department Director. The employee must sign the Mobile 

Device Security Request Form and agree to abide by all policy statements within. The 
Director shall authorize the request when appropriate and affirm the business need for 

approval of the request. Reno County Information Technology has the final authority to 
grant access for any mobile device request. 

 

c) Employees granted access to Reno County network resources on their personal devices 
shall allow the Information Technology Department to have the ability to remotely 

manage some aspects on the device for which access is granted. This gives the 
Information Technology Department the ability to manage, disable, lock, change 

passwords, track, and wipe any device under the management platform. 
 

 d)  If the Mobile Device is lost or stolen the employee must report the loss to Information 



7 

  Services Department immediately. 
 

 e)  Personal Devices given access to Reno County network resources shall be managed in a 
  way which is capable of remotely disabling, locking or wiping the device. It will not be the 

  responsibility of Reno County, or Reno County Information Technology Department to 

  maintain, safeguard, backup, protect the employee's personal device and/or data. 
 

 f) When using a personally owned device for Reno County business, information contained 
  on that device could be the subject of a Kansas Open Records Act (KORA) request, court 

  discovery or other legal investigation. If this occurs, the employee will be required to 
  relinquish the device and provide all necessary passwords to fulfill the open records  

  request, court discovery or legal investigation. 

 
g) The Information Technology Department will not provide technical support for any 

personally owned Mobile Device, except to provide initial setup, security and to disable, 
lock, and/or wipe devices when needed to ensure the security and integrity of the Reno 

County  network. Employees are encouraged to utilize the Internet (google.com, 

youtube.com, and user groups), third parties, and their devices manufacturer resources 
for any problem resolution with their personally owned device. 

 
h) It shall be considered a violation of this Policy for any device approved for connection to 

 the Reno County network to be "hacked", "jail broken", "rooted.”  Any changes to the 
 operating system provided by the manufacturer compromises security, and will result in 

 immediate termination of Reno County services to the device. 

 
 

6.8 APPS (Applications) on County Owned Mobile Devices 
 

a) Unless previously approved by the Department Head and Information Technology no applications 

shall be downloaded to any device that cause a charge, invoice, withdrawal, etc. to any county 
funding mechanism, credit mechanism, or purchasing mechanism. 

 
b) Consumer Grade mobile devices are generally capable of downloading and using APPS 

(Applications or programs). The Information Technology Department may at its discretion limit, 

restrict, or allow the capability for devices granted access to Reno County network resources the 
ability to download and use commercially available Apps. 

 
c) If at any point Information Technology Department discovers any downloaded App has, or has 

the potential to compromise security to the network, the Information Technology Department 
shall disable, lock, and/or wipe the compromised device as soon as possible, and render it 

unusable for network access. The Information Technology Department will report the incident to 

the Department Director or equivalent of the employee whose device was deemed to be 
compromised. 

 
 

d) Downloads such as Music, Videos, Movies, etc. is prohibited. When in question, consult with 

Information Technology. 
 

 
 

7. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
 The County Administrator, Department Directors, Elected Officials, Managers, and Supervisors at all levels shall 

 fully understand this Policy and be held responsible for any employee under his/her management for meeting 



8 

 the requirements set forth within this Policy and shall communicate the requirements of this Policy to any and 
 all persons to whom this Policy applies. 
 

Any employee found to be abusing the privilege of County facilitated access to electronic media or 

communication services shall be subject to disciplinary action which may include, denial of access to the County 

Computer System, unpaid suspension, or termination of employment. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reno County Policy Receipt 
 

Electronic Media and Mobile Device Security and Training  
 
 

 
As an employee of Reno County, I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the 
Electronic Media and Mobile Device Security and Training Policy   
 
I understand that it is my responsibility to comply with this policy and any revisions to it. 
 
I will direct any questions regarding the content of this and any Reno County Policy to my 
department director, supervisor, or the Reno County Human Resources Department for 
clarification.  

 
 
 

                                            
Employee’s Name (Please PRINT Legibly) 

 
 
 __________________________________________  __________________________                

Employee’s Signature                                   Date 
 
 

RENO COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2982 

Fax: 620-694-2508 
 

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 
 

 



10  

 

 

 

Information Technology Department 

Mobile Device Security Request Form 
 

I acknowledge that I had read, understand, and will comply with the 

Electronic Media and Mobile Device Security and Training Policy.   

I am requesting (check one): 
 

 County supplied Mobile Device access to Reno County 

 

 Personally owned Mobile Device access to Reno County 

 
Employee Printed Name:    

Employee Signature:          

Date:          ______________________________________ 

 

I approve the Mobile Device requested and acknowledge that there is a clear business need for access to the 

Reno County Network.   

 Please Explain: ________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Non-Exempt Employee (Hourly) 

 Exempt Employee (Salaried) 

Department Head or Elected Official Printed Name:   ________________                                                                                            

Department Head or Elected Official Signature:       ________________ 

  Date: _________________ 
 
 

Please forward this completed form to the Information Technology Department 



jubilee.critchfield
Typewritten text
AGENDA ITEM #7.A













































AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.B

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Karla Nichols, Director of Public Health

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Replacement Appointment to the Reno County Health Department (RCHD) Advisory Board

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Current RCHD Advisory Board member, Aubrey Nuss, has submitted her resignation to Hutchinson
Regional Healthcare System, and to the RCHD Advisory Board. 
 
Since Hutchinson Regional Healthcare System is a valuable healthcare partner for Reno County, the
health department is asking for Aubrey's replacement to be a current employee of Hutchinson
Regional.  Aubrey, and the leadership of Hutchinson Regional, has recommend that Kelli Miller, Care
Management Director, replace Aubrey on the RCHD Advisory Board.
 
There was another applicant for this position, however, we recommend staying with the hospital's
recommendation.  Kelli's application is attached. 
 
Aubrey will end her commitment with the RCHD Advisory Board on May 31, 2024.  We are asking for
Kelli replacement term to begin June 1, 2024, and continue until that term expires December 31, 2025.
 
Upcoming - End of the Year 
With the movement of the Environmental Health section from the health department, the health
department will be providing recommendations to update the RCHD Advisory Board committee
membership.  This review will coincide with the replacement of 1-year appointments, thus, there will be
additional spots open up at the end of the year.  

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Approve the replacement appointment.
2. Deny the replacement appointment and send back to the health department for an additional
nomination. 

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approval of the replacement appointment



2/28/2019 

 
 
 

 
 
              
Signature of Applicant        Date 

 

 
 
Please indicate below your reasons for wanting to serve on this board, committee, or commission.  Tell what special 
knowledge, skills, experience, or background you possess that you believe are applicable to this board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Availability during Business Hours                     Yes                                   No

Preferred method of Contact                              Phone                             E-Mail

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO

RENO COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

 
 
 
Are you presently serving on a County board, committee or commission? If so, which one(s)? (Please provide expiration 
term date)                         
 
Name: 
 
Residence Address: 
 
City:     State:   Zip: 
 
Home Phone:    Cell-Phone:                 Email:   
 
 
Current or Previous Employment 

(Name of Business & Industry)

308 E 16th 

6204740424 6209604184 millerkl@hutchregional.com 

I became the Director of Care Management in July of 2023 and have found the lack of resources available to our 
community or lack of knowledge.  My experience at the hospital gives me a wide range of what resources are truly 
needed in our community.  I want to be a part of correcting this and coming up with idea to better it. 

HRMC 

03 / 26 / 2024

Reno County Community Wellness Coalition 

Kelli Miller 

Hutchinson KS 67501 

Document Ref: VYYAG-4JRIW-YEYK9-H7HBK Page 1 of 1



Signature Certificate
Reference number: VYYAG-4JRIW-YEYK9-H7HBK

Document completed by all parties on:
26 Mar 2024 14:09:47 UTC

Page 1 of 1

Signer Timestamp Signature

Kelli Miller
Email: millerkl@hutchregional.com

Recipient Verification:

Sent: 26 Mar 2024 14:01:51 UTC
Viewed: 26 Mar 2024 14:01:55 UTC
Signed: 26 Mar 2024 14:09:47 UTC

✔Email verified 26 Mar 2024 14:01:55 UTC
IP address: 74.121.128.10
Location: Hutchinson, United States

Signed with PandaDoc

PandaDoc is a document workflow and certified eSignature
solution trusted by 50,000+ companies worldwide.



2/28/2019 

 
 
 

 
 
              
Signature of Applicant        Date 

 

 
 
Please indicate below your reasons for wanting to serve on this board, committee, or commission.  Tell what special 
knowledge, skills, experience, or background you possess that you believe are applicable to this board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Availability during Business Hours                     Yes                                   No

Preferred method of Contact                              Phone                             E-Mail

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO

RENO COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

 
 
 
Are you presently serving on a County board, committee or commission? If so, which one(s)? (Please provide expiration 
term date)                         
 
Name: 
 
Residence Address: 
 
City:     State:   Zip: 
 
Home Phone:    Cell-Phone:                 Email:   
 
 
Current or Previous Employment 

(Name of Business & Industry)

1601 N CLEVELAND 

620-259-3167 620-259-3167 Nursejamee92@gmail.com 

I would love to increase my reach in the healthcare community locally. My current role in my job that I have been doing 
for over 5 years has shown me the amazing things in our medical community as well as opening my eyes to some of 
our shortcomings. I am a Nurse coordinator locally and work closely with many physicians, advanced practice 
providers, and medical facilities and have built great relationships with them. Increasing the positive health and aging 
in Hutchinson is a goal of mine and I would love to help in anyway possible. 

Enhabit Home Health 

05 / 07 / 2024

Boys and girls club of Hutchinson board member, Reno county department of Aging board 

Jamee Lynne Archer 

Hutchinson Ks 67501 

Document Ref: BXDFQ-SUIWK-8GOSD-EK3HL Page 1 of 1



Signature Certificate
Reference number: BXDFQ-SUIWK-8GOSD-EK3HL

Document completed by all parties on:
07 May 2024 15:21:12 UTC

Page 1 of 1

Signer Timestamp Signature

Jamee Archer
Email: nursejamee92@gmail.com

Recipient Verification:

Sent: 07 May 2024 15:15:51 UTC
Viewed: 07 May 2024 15:15:55 UTC
Signed: 07 May 2024 15:21:12 UTC

✔Email verified 07 May 2024 15:15:55 UTC
IP address: 174.196.47.252
Location: Kansas City, United States

Signed with PandaDoc

PandaDoc is a document workflow and certified eSignature
solution trusted by 50,000+ companies worldwide.



 

 
 
 
 

 

 
To:  County Commission 
From:  Randy Partington, County Administrator 
Date:  May 22, 2024 
RE: Discussion of Sheriff’s Shooting Range Phase II, Fire District #3 and Fire District 

#7 Building Needs 
 
Over the past couple of years, there have been discussions of the Sheriff’s Office shooting range 
phase II that consists of a training building.  Phase I is almost complete and consists of the shooting 
platform and awning.  Reno County Sheriff’s Office is requesting consideration to move forward on 
phase II.  If the commission agrees to move forward, the Sheriff’s Office will be in contact with Hutton 
Construction to revise details and cost estimates to get to an amount not to exceed.  The Reno 
County Administrator will then work to prepare documents for a short-term bond to pay for phase II 
and the fire district projects described below.   
 
Fire District #7 in Turon and Fire District #3 in Nickerson both need a new fire station/building.  FD 
7’s station has an estimated cost of around $400k but needs to go out to bid to follow county policy.  
The district will pay all but about $150,000 of this from their reserve fund.  FD 7’s reserve fund has a 
balance of $341,530.  This reserve fund has been built up for both the cost of new trucks/engines, 
and also to prepare for the need of a building that has been discussed for several years.  Emergency 
Management would like to keep at least $100,000 in the reserve fund for non-building costs. 
 
FD 3 has been discussing a new station for well over four years. Emergency Management and FD 
#3’s Chief feel the new building can be built similar to the one for FD 7, which is smaller and a better 
cost than what was proposed four years ago.  A few years ago, they had an estimated cost of 
approximately $1 million to build a new station.  If they used a building similar to what FD 7 is 
requesting, the cost would be closer to $400,000, though we have not gone out for quotes on this 
building.  The reserve fund balance for FD 3 is $313,020.  Like FD 7, the FD 3 reserve fund does not 
have enough to cover the entire cost but can use around $200,000 to go toward the building cost. 
 
The remaining amount for both districts will need to be financed, which I have researched the 
avenues to finance such a small amount that allows for a short-term pay off.  The plan is to get more 
recent quotes for both the fire district buildings, so we have a more concrete amount that needs to 
be financed.  The financing must be determined before a contract is signed for the building purchase 
and installation.  
 

 

 
RENO COUNTY 

Administration 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, KS 67501-5245 
620-694-2929 

Fax: 620-694-2928 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #7.C



Reno County Sheriff’s Office
Training Facility Project

05/17/2023



Project progress to date:  Phase I

• Land located adjacent to the Landfill on County Property

• Planning and Zoning process completed for a conditional use permit to allow the 

property to be used as a firearms range

• Worked with SCS Engineers who are currently contracted with the Landfill for the 

training facility dirt work engineering.  

• To date, $34,741.48 

• Soil inspections for wastewater permit completed

• Ordered 2000 tons of crushed concrete with the landfill for training facility road and 

parking areas

• Total cost of $19,600.00, mostly paid for with donation money for this project



• Culvert and driveway are in place

• Reno County conducted interviews of Design Build companies and ultimately 

contracted with Hutton Construction.

• Reno County Landfill is building the berms and completing the dirt work for the training 

facility saving the County approximately $1,000,000.00. 

• Hydroseeding of the western berm is being completed for a cost of $20,755.00.

• The range awning is being completed at a cost of approximately $509,000.00.

• Phase I completion is expected sometime in the first 2 weeks of June.









This storage container was acquired 
from the landfill and will be used to 
provide secure storage for training 
equipment and material.  This 
removes the need to build a storage 
building, reducing the cost of the 
overall project. 



Phase II Training Building
Design / Floorplan



Building Location / Phase II Project Scope

Lagoon













Training Building and Facility Features
The building itself is a training environment allowing for room clearing, hallway work, and building clearing 
exercises.  

The inside of the building is designed to durable and easy to clean.  For example, the floors are only sealed 
concrete.  There are no “high end” finishes.  

The roof of the building is designed to allow for specialized SWAT related training providing elevation 
changes, and for staff during training working in a safety officer roll.

Similarly, the awning has an elevated platform for SWAT trainings as well as an elevated area for a safety 
officer during trainings.  

The awning will also allow light bars and flood lights to be mounted which are used night and low light 
operations to simulate different environments.  

The facility will be able to support multiple different trainings simultaneously. 

The range portion of the facility supports longer distance shooting, up to 400 yards.

Areas are provided for training with the bearcat (armored rescue vehicle).

The southeast corner of the property is available to build a shipping container (conex) training 
environment in the future.  



Training Facility Capabilities
• Statutory firearms qualifications 
• Spring and fall Annual firearms training
• Night / low light firearms training
• Basic handgun and rifle courses
• Basic SWAT schools
• Basic Sniper Courses
• Department Open Range Days
• Department SRT training days
• Law Enforcement Sniper trainings
• Armored Vehicle Training
• Taser classes
• Chemical Munitions Training
• Defensive Tactics classes
• Drone Trainings
• Police K-9 Training
• Force on Force classes
• Building searches
• Car stop training / practical’s
• Physical agility training and assessments
• Active Shooter Training
• Negotiator Training

• Interview and interrogation classes
• Medical and first aid
• CIT / Mental Health classes
• Jail Operations
• Crime Scenes
• Evidence collection
• Homicide / Death Investigations
• Report Writing
• Crime Stoppers classes
• DUI Investigation Training

• + many other trainings not listed

The training building will be able to 
accommodate classroom-based training and 
provide meeting space for all Reno County 
departments. 



What Law Enforcement 
Agencies will be able to utilize 
this facility?

All Law Enforcement within Reno County
• Reno County Sheriff’s Office
• Hutchinson Police Department
• South Hutchinson Police Department
• Haven PD
• Buhler PD
• USD 309 PD
• KS Highway Patrol
• Wildlife and Parks
• Kansas Department of Corrections
• Reno County District Attorney’s Office
• Judges from Reno County
• Hutchinson Fire Department

South Central Kansas Region: (Regional LEAs)
 







Other Agency Training Facility Cost Comparison

• Saline County 2019: $4,998,000.00       ($6,129,747.69 today’s money)

• Garden City Police Department 2017: $1,850,000.00   ($2,366,448.27 today’s money)

• Shawnee County 2010: $1,400,000.00      ($2,013,093.88 today’s money)

• Brunswick County, NC, 2017: $2,120,000.00    ($2,711,821.80 today’s money)

None of the above listed ranges have the capabilities of the facility we are currently working 
towards.  Saline and Garden City are indoor ranges, limited to 25 yards, and Shawnee is 
outdoor limited to 100 yards. 

The above range is similar to our project in terms of capability and types of training.



Reno County Sheriff’s Office
206 W. 1st Ave.

Hutchinson, KS. 67501
620-694-2735



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.A

AGENDA DATE: May 22, 2024

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Monthly Department Reports

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Every month, departments have been asked to provide an update on the previous month's major
activities.  The reports are intended to keep the county commission informed about the appointed and
elected departments.  Attached are reports for Health, HR, IT, Maintenance, Public Works, Solid Waste,
Treasurer, and Youth Services.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Randy Partington, County Administrator: 

 

RE:  Monthly report ending April 30, 2024 

 

Staffing Vacancies:   

Our current vacancy is for a Childcare Specialist.      

 

Program Updates: 

Admin/Finance/Health Information Management (HIM).  Billing staff attended the Kansas 

Association of Local Health Departments (KALHD) Billing Symposium April 2-3.  We held a 

Pizza Party for all staff on Monday, April 1st to kick off and celebrate Public Health Week, April 

1st –5th.   

 

Childcare Licensing (CCL).  Staff conducted 1 orientation class, 8 annual surveys, 1 compliance 

visit, and 1 complaint survey.  One of our Childcare Specialist will be retiring in June.   

 

Clinical – Basic Health Services (BHS), Maternal Child Health (MCH), Family Planning (FP), 

and Older Adult Services (OAS).  During the month, staff went out to area schools to administer 

7th grade immunizations.  Our Assistant Director of Clinical Services facilitated a Reno County 

school nurse meeting on April 12th; nurses provided feedback on school immunizations, asked 

immunization questions, and participated in a measles outbreak scenario tabletop exercise.    

           

Epidemiology and COVID-19 Update.  Staff conducted 11 infectious disease investigations, with 

11 confirmed or probable cases.  There were 2 animal bite investigations conducted.  There were 

2 cases of histoplasmosis, one pertussis (whooping cough) case, and the chickenpox outbreak is 

still ongoing.   As of 4/17/24, the percentage of COVID-19 emergency department (ED) visits 

has stayed between 0% and 1% of ED visits.  The most recent week, COVID-19 visits made up 

0.2% of all visits.  As of April 17th, there was 1 patient hospitalized with COVID-19.   ED visits 

for both RSV and Flu continue to stay low and made up 0.2% and 0.9% of all ED visits this past 

week.   

 

Health Education – Chronic Disease and Risk Reduction (CDRR), Comprehensive Opioid, 

Stimulant, and Substance Use Site-based Program (COSSUP), Pathways to a Healthy Kansas, 

and Community Education.  CDRR-Staff continue to meet with Haven High School and Prairie 

Hills Middle School on vaping/tobacco prevention.  Staff continue to work with the Reno 

County Jail staff on the Kansas Tobacco Cessation Training (KaTCH) that provides jail staff and 

therapists with tools to help tobacco dependent individuals entering jail with cessation tools.  

COSSUP-Staff finalized Interagency Data Sharing Agreements, complete 3 case reviews, and 

sent out subaward information to partners.  Pathways-Staff are working with community partners 

on showcasing the initiatives of our Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP).        

 

209 West 2nd Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5232 

(620) 694-2900 

Fax (620) 694-2901 

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 800-766-3777 

www.renogov.org/health 



 

Preparedness (PHEP).  Staff assisted CCL staff in supplying preparedness books and information 

for the third Thursday event on 4/18, and completed FIT testing for all health department 

employees.  With the assistance of the City of Hutchinson, staff is implementing Everbridge in 

our mass communication plan.  Staff attended the Statewide Trauma Symposium on April 10th, 

and held a Reno County MRC volunteer recognition event on April 27th.   

 

WIC – Women, Infant & Children. We have 1235 active clients (have used at least 1 item on 

food benefits) out of 1396 participating (received benefits).  Breastfeeding Peer Counselors held 

2 events with 10 participants, and staff assisted 19 individuals with breastfeeding.  Staff 

participated in the Kansas WIC Conference April 23-24.  Along with taking care of Reno and 

McPherson counties, our Dietitian has been assisting Rice County to cover their program until 

staff are hired at the local level; this will likely span six months.   

       

Becoming a High(er) Performing Organization.  Two staff members were able to join other Reno 

County employees and participate in the Kansas Leadership Center (KLC) training on April 16th.  

Two staff members were able to participate in the KU HPO Training April 29-30.        

 

The Invisible Shield – Bloomberg Media documentary on PBS.  I wanted to take the time to 

follow up on the amazing documentary that has been airing on PBS.  Its focus is on the 

importance of public health – as it says early in the preview, “Public health saved your life today, 

and you didn’t even know it.”   

 

Each one-hour episode focuses on a different topic: 

1. The Old Playbook.  Discover how public health has doubled life expectancy, but the system is 

now in jeopardy.  When the world has to cope with the COVID-19 pandemic, the public health 

sector revisits the past to create solutions.    

2. Follow The Data.  Learn how data collection has been an essential public health tool for 

centuries.  Increasing understanding and mitigating the spread of disease, data has helped make 

sense of the threats to collective health.    

3. Inoculation & Inequity.  Explore how disinformation, science skepticism, and government 

distrust impacted COVID-19 vaccination efforts.  Historical injustices and inequities lead to 

apprehension, forcing public health to refine its approach.   

4. The New Playbook.  Discover how experts are rethinking the public health system in the face 

of declining life expectancy, inequality, and deaths of despair.  How will the next generation of 

committed public health workers overcome the obstacles they will confront?  

 
The link for the series can be found at: https://www.pbs.org/show/the-invisible-shield/. If you 
scroll down the page, click on the box that says, "The Invisible Shield, Explore Discussion 
Guide.” Once you click on "Explore Discussion Guide", then scroll down, you can watch all four 
episodes of the documentary. If you scroll down a little more, there is a box that says, 
"Discussion Guide". You can download this wonderful Discussion Guide; it presents questions 
that encourage critical thinking, powerful discussion, and expanded understanding regarding 
public health.  
 

Sincerely,  

Karla Nichols,  

Director of Public Health 



                                                                                               
           RENO COUNTY 
                                                                                       206 West First Ave. 
                              Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 

                                                                          PHONE: (620) 694-2982 
   FAX: (620) 694-2508 

 
 

Board of Commissioners - Department Update 

Human Resources – April 2024 
Helen Foster – Human Resources Director 

 

 
Employment Activity for March 
During the month of April, we had 7 (seven) new hires and 6 (six) separations from employment. This month we 
received a total of 153 applications through April 26th.  We went from 20 active job postings to 17 active job 
postings for the month of April. April has been an active month for applications and new hires.   
 
Evaluations 
Evaluations have been completed.  Human Resources will be doing an analysis of the data from the evaluations to 
review the pay for performance model with the new evaluation.  This will consist of using the data to compile 
different options for the application of pay for performance.  I will be working with Randy for insight to make the 
process better and more welcomed by managers. 
 
Upcoming Projects 
Human Resources has welcomed a new team member.  Payroll was moved from the County Clerk to Human 
Resources on April 15, 2024.  I am working with the payroll associate to learn payroll.  This will be a task that all 
the Human Resource Full-Time staff will learn so that we always have backup for the payroll associate.  
 
The Human Resource team is currently working diligently on compiling all the data and preparing the presentations 
for the Supervisor Seminar.  This seminar will consist of all staff presenting on different aspects of HR compliance 
and processes utilized in the HR office.  We are excited to have this in motion. 
 
HPO Training 
May will begin the start of all the HR team attending the 2-day HPO training conducted by KU.  All staff in HR are 
excited to attend the training and I am looking forward to everyone learning the concepts taught through HPO.  This 
office has always communicated well, and we all make a great team.  This training will further grow our team and 
open areas for conversation around effectiveness and efficiency of practices.  New perspectives will be a great 
addition to the team! 
 
Budget 
Currently, I have used 27% of my overall budget.  Many of the contractual service renewals will happen in the next 
couple of months which will make an impact on my budget usage.  Elise will begin making preparations in the 
coming months for service awards.   
 

 



 
 

 

 

 

          

 

         April 26, 2024 
           Monthly Report Information Services 

           Michael Mathews 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

We have no staffing changes currently. 

Budget YTD summary 

We are in the middle of paying most of our large software maintenance agreements. It will appear as we are spending a 

large percentage of our budget but will even out over the year. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We are still helping with the Tyler Eagle recording software installation. It is slated to go live sometime in 

september2024. 

We are currently working very closely with GovBuilt on the county website redesign and content review. We are 

currently reviewing the first draft of the site and sending corrections and changes to the vendor. We will be live on the 

site by May 1. 

We are currently working with several departments to find more innovative ways to be more efficient. 
 
We conducted a Cyber Security training session with a focus group during April. We are collecting feedback and will 
make a few adjustments and then require all computer users to attend a session in the very near future.   
 
I am also working with the staff to make sure that they all have a good grasp of what each other does and to be 
prepared to help should a staff member be out.  We have so many different responsibilities that it is easy for our duties 
to not overlap. As much cross training as possible will provide better end user support.  
 

Issues that we dealt with in the past month include. Just managing our cyber security. It is an ongoing battle.  

 

 

 

 

 

RENO COUNTY 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2523 

Fax: 620-694-2954 



         

  

 

Maintenance & Purchasing Monthly Report  4/25/2024 

Harlen Depew, Director 

Staffing:  All custodial positions are now filled, pending pre-employment testing.  We’ve had several promising 

candidates and are in the process of interviewing for our open Tech I position at the present time. 

Budget YTD summary 

One third of the way into the year, operating expenditures are at 28%. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Courthouse Remodel 

Carpet installation on the 5th floor wrapped up this week, with new furniture scheduled to be installed in the west 

offices the first week of May.  That will substantially complete the contractual portion of the remodel project, with 

a few remaining details to wrap up with county employees. 

Courthouse Network Cabling  

This project is approximately 33% complete.  Will continue to work on this as time allows, with a goal of 

completing it before the end of 2024. 

Surplus Property 

Purple Wave Auction has informed us that they will no longer be selling small, non-equipment related items on 

their site, so we have been looking at other options for disposing of surplus furniture and other miscellaneous 

items.  We thought Ebay was going to be a viable option to try, but found out in the final stages of setting up an 

account that they do not allow sales by government entities.  So, we’re back looking for other options. 

 

 



 

Don Brittain 

Public Works Director 

 

Road & Bridge • Planning & Zoning • Noxious Weed • Utilities 

 
                                                                                                   

  

A p r i l , 2024 Monthly Report 

 

Asphalt Crew will start asphalt overlaying within the second week of May.  

 

Mowing/Sign has begun mowing county road ditches.  

 

Dirt Crew is cleaning ditches and replacing culverts beneath the roads that will be overlayed this 

year.  

 

Bridge Crew has started replacing Peace Road Bridge, 5.20 miles south of Parallel Road. and 

repairing bridges as needed.  

 

Planning & Zoning  Planning & Zoning Commission has completed working on limited scale 

regulations and trying to finish private solar regulations. 

 

Environmental / Utilities. Grants are being applied for Both SD201-202 and Yoder WD101 

projects and Public Works staff has applied for grants for these projects.  Utility and Environmental 

being combined is working out very well.  

  

Contracted Projects  

 

Woody Seat Bridge: The work on the Woody Seat Bridge has been completed other than 

pavement markings that will be installed by county forces this month. The road will continue 

to be closed due to work being performed on city infrastructure, north of the bridge.  

 

The Willowbrook Bridge construction has been completed. The old bridge is now being 

removed. 

 

Applied for a federal grant to replace the Buhler Rd. Bridge, ¾ mile south of the City of Buhler 

and raise a portion of the roadway north of the bridge location, to prevent flooding of the 

roadway.    

  

Challenges                                                              

 

Water District 101 project timeline, not moving fast enough. 

Sewer District 201-202 project timeline, not moving fast enough. 

Finalizing solar regulations. 

   

Public Works 

600 Scott Boulevard 

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505 

620-694-2976 

Don Brittain, Director 

 



                           Reno County Solid Waste  
                                                                                 703 S. Mohawk 
                                                                                 Hutchinson, KS 67501 
              (620) 694-2586 
              Fax (620) 694-669-8126 

 

 
 

Solid Waste Monthly Update April 2024 
Prepared by Megan Davidson, Director 

 
Staffing: We currently are full staff at the landfill.  
 
Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: Wind, wind, and more wind has been the theme around 
the landfill. We have been busy trying to maintain blowing litter outside the fences. We are 
gearing up for another busy mowing season onsite as well as dirt work projects preparing for 
the next Phase III project in construction and demolition.  
 
I attended the KS WORKS Recycling conference in Salina in April. 
 
 
The Household Hazardous Waste Trailer will be visiting a few towns in Reno County in the next 
coming weeks. This is a service that we offer to cities in Reno County to help residents clean out 
old paints, chemicals, fertilizers, etc.  
 
 
Budget:  We have spent approximately 9% of our overall budget. 

 
 
 

 
 

  



 

www.renogov.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 24, 2024 

 

 

Monthly Report – Treasurer’s Office 

 
STAFFING CHANGES: 

 

We have promoted several employees to new positions within our office after a long time employee left for 

a position with the City of Cheney.  These employees are presently learning their new roles and additional 

responsibilities.   

 

We still have one opening left in the Tag Department to fill.  Training remains on-going for the Tag 

employees hired a few months ago.   

 

 

PROJECTS: 

 

During April, we opened the online portal for real estate tax payments.  The 2023 second half real estate 

and personal property tax payments come due on May 10, 2024, and payments are starting to come in. 

 

Our first multi-million dollar escrow tax file of the tax season was processed yesterday, and several more 

large escrow tax files were processed today. The incoming mail volume will be increasing substantially 

over the next week or two.   

 

We have been working very closely with First National Bank to be sure that Reno County’s funds are fully 

insured as our deposits are greatly increasing due to incoming taxes.  Deposits will continue to be high over 

the next several weeks.  Daily notifications will be provided to First National when expected deposits 

exceed certain thresholds so that they can secure the necessary additional pledgings for protection of our 

funds. 

 

With month end for the Tag Office approaching, plus the looming property tax deadline for the Treasurer’s 

Office, we will be extremely busy in the next few weeks. 

 

  

 

 

RENO COUNTY TREASURER 
125 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2938 

Fax: 620-694-2776 
T

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 



  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Youth Services Monthly Report 

                                                   April 2024       

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

April ended with fewer job openings for shelter, as well as detention. We are 

currently seeking to fill one full-time, male only, Juvenile Corrections Officer 

position for the afternoon shift.  A tentative offer has been made for the full-time 

morning shift position in detention.  The Detention Supervisor for first shift has 

moved on and the replacement for that position will be filled by the current night 

shift supervisor, Josh Pettay.  Angie Fant has been promoted to the 3rd shift 

supervisor position for shelter and detention. Congratulations, Angie. On the 

shelter side, we currently have a first shift, male only position open, and recently 

filled a male only position in shelter. We still have another male only, night shift 

position remaining open and we seek to fill a 30-hour maintenance position.  All 

these positions offer insurance benefits and KPERS. Those interested in the 

open positions can apply online at Renogov.org. The staff member for the 

month of April has yet to be named but will be noted in May’s monthly report.          

Budget YTD Summary 

As of 4/4/2024, we have spent 22% of our Shelter budget (Dept.90). We have spent 28% of our 

detention budget (Dept.91). .     

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

No major projects planned for next month. It’s time to get ready for summer as school will be winding 

down mid-May. Many of our youth are working hard to be eligible for a few trips to Wichita this 

summer as Youth Services is planning outings to the trampoline park, baseball games and water 

parks. We also have two of our youth who will be graduating from Hutchinson High School this May.  

Congratulations to both of them as they prepare to move out into the world and begin their own lives.    

RENO COUNTY YOUTH SERVICES 
219 West Second Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas  67501 
(620) 694-2500 

Fax:  (620) 694-2504 
TDD:  Kansas Relay Center  1-800-766-3777 

JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER 

JUVENILE INTAKE & ASSESSMENT 

BOB JOHNSON YOUTH SHELTER 

 



  2024 YTD BUDGET REPORT

Organization Set.Organization 00  Dept As of 4/30/2024

Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Recd / 

Used
001  General Fund

00  Unclassified
Revenue

Interest 558,000.00 1,425,419.26 255%
Taxes 14,684,287.00 6,990,860.53 48%
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 229,450.00 137,134.58 60%
Reimbursements 795,500.00 531,272.86 67%
Transfers In from Other Funds 30,000.00 0.00 0%
Other Revenue 0.00 415,963.55

Revenue Total 16,297,237.00 9,500,650.78 58%

Expenses
Other Expense & Reimbursements 0.00 1,007.92

Expenses Total 0.00 1,007.92

01  County Commission
Expenses

Personnel Services 54,000.00 18,692.10 35%
Contractual Services 4,300.00 1,422.15 33%
Commodities 2,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 60,300.00 20,114.25 33%

02  County Clerk
Revenue

Reimbursements 15,000.00 0.00 0%
Revenue Total 15,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses
Personnel Services 237,727.00 101,786.60 43%
Contractual Services 27,070.00 2,757.28 10%
Commodities 3,400.00 509.00 15%

Expenses Total 268,197.00 105,052.88 39%

03  County Treasurer
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 0.00 1.00
Reimbursements 0.00 284.00

Revenue Total 0.00 285.00

Expenses
Personnel Services 211,852.00 74,217.33 35%
Contractual Services 53,735.00 7,267.83 14%
Commodities 36,650.00 1,169.15 3%

Expenses Total 302,237.00 82,654.31 27%

5/2/2024

jubilee.critchfield
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM 8.B



  2024 YTD BUDGET REPORT

Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Recd / 

Used
04  District Attorney

Revenue
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 100,000.00 45,137.00 45%
Reimbursements 4,000.00 13,187.56 330%

Revenue Total 104,000.00 58,324.56 56%

Expenses
Personnel Services 1,252,528.00 445,003.91 36%
Contractual Services 370,900.00 36,046.58 10%
Commodities 49,000.00 6,261.97 13%

Expenses Total 1,672,428.00 487,312.46 29%

05  Register of Deeds
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 400,000.00 124,425.00 31%
Revenue Total 400,000.00 124,425.00 31%

Expenses
Personnel Services 170,324.00 57,907.60 34%
Contractual Services 10,555.00 3,401.56 32%
Commodities 6,050.00 502.65 8%

Expenses Total 186,929.00 61,811.81 33%

06  Sheriff
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 32,000.00 9,455.00 30%
Reimbursements 18,000.00 8,360.36 46%
Grant Revenues 12,000.00 1,877.19 16%

Revenue Total 62,000.00 19,692.55 32%

Expenses
Personnel Services 3,402,568.00 1,149,379.01 34%
Contractual Services 407,380.00 202,105.36 50%
Commodities 484,500.00 70,369.41 15%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 310,974.00 24,590.77 8%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 2,000.00 783.23 39%

Expenses Total 4,607,422.00 1,447,227.78 31%

07  County Administration
Expenses

Personnel Services 619,009.00 191,772.24 31%
Contractual Services 59,150.00 4,072.82 7%
Commodities 2,500.00 571.40 23%

Expenses Total 680,659.00 196,416.46 29%

5/2/2024



  2024 YTD BUDGET REPORT

Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Recd / 

Used
08  District Court

Revenue
Reimbursements 10,000.00 636.55 6%

Revenue Total 10,000.00 636.55 6%

Expenses
Contractual Services 561,990.00 164,703.06 29%
Commodities 55,100.00 11,167.58 20%

Expenses Total 617,090.00 175,870.64 28%

09  Courthouse General
Revenue

Reimbursements 11,000.00 2,844.10 26%
Revenue Total 11,000.00 2,844.10 26%

Expenses
Personnel Services 85,084.00 34,711.74 41%
Contractual Services 411,500.00 91,130.16 22%
Commodities 2,000.00 3,761.46 188%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 15,000.00 0.00 0%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 750,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 1,263,584.00 129,603.36 10%

10  County General
Expenses

Contractual Services 978,850.00 777,100.42 79%
Commodities 6,500.00 801.18 12%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 10,000.00 266.05 3%
Outside Agencies Appropriation 578,000.00 300,000.00 52%
Ambulance Services 1,907,451.00 294,799.52 15%
Emergency Communications 977,500.00 219,435.45 22%
Economic Development Projects 400,000.00 0.00 0%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 1,017,655.00 0.00 0%
Commission Discretionary 20,000.00 190.00 1%

Expenses Total 5,895,956.00 1,592,592.62 27%

11  Maintenance
Revenue

Reimbursements 30,000.00 10,433.95 35%
Revenue Total 30,000.00 10,433.95 35%

Expenses
Personnel Services 874,619.00 268,806.90 31%
Contractual Services 91,440.00 29,615.86 32%
Commodities 84,915.00 27,677.60 33%

Expenses Total 1,050,974.00 326,100.36 31%

5/2/2024



  2024 YTD BUDGET REPORT

Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Recd / 

Used

12  Planning & Zoning
Expenses

Personnel Services 92,233.00 31,167.33 34%
Contractual Services 17,950.00 258.45 1%
Commodities 140.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 110,323.00 31,425.78 28%

13  Emergency Management
Revenue

Reimbursements 110,000.00 0.00 0%
Revenue Total 110,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses
Personnel Services 321,379.00 111,306.14 35%
Contractual Services 45,575.00 16,781.43 37%
Commodities 35,450.00 12,024.42 34%

Expenses Total 402,404.00 140,111.99 35%

14  Sheriff - Jail
Revenue

Reimbursements 50,000.00 19,090.86 38%
Grant Revenues 0.00 46,356.50
Other Revenue 500.00 0.00 0%

Revenue Total 50,500.00 65,447.36 130%

Expenses
Personnel Services 2,503,334.00 1,021,731.64 41%
Contractual Services 1,078,428.00 277,798.46 26%
Commodities 217,250.00 57,124.75 26%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 32,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 3,831,012.00 1,356,654.85 35%

15  Human Resources
Expenses

Personnel Services 216,012.00 73,553.81 34%
Contractual Services 47,100.00 11,409.96 24%
Commodities 17,000.00 958.79 6%

Expenses Total 280,112.00 85,922.56 31%

5/2/2024



  2024 YTD BUDGET REPORT

Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Recd / 

Used
16  Appraiser

Revenue
Reimbursements 7,500.00 3,789.00 51%

Revenue Total 7,500.00 3,789.00 51%

Expenses
Personnel Services 701,019.00 238,564.76 34%
Contractual Services 77,450.00 21,788.89 28%
Commodities 18,350.00 2,243.32 12%

Expenses Total 796,819.00 262,596.97 33%

17  County Clerk - Election
Revenue

Reimbursements 52,750.00 10.00 0%
Revenue Total 52,750.00 10.00 0%

Expenses
Personnel Services 213,074.00 47,023.97 22%
Contractual Services 249,760.00 84,815.53 34%
Commodities 14,300.00 4,976.56 35%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 52,000.00 53,124.68 102%

Expenses Total 529,134.00 189,940.74 36%

18  Information Technology
Revenue

Reimbursements 28,000.00 10,160.10 36%
Revenue Total 28,000.00 10,160.10 36%

Expenses
Personnel Services 589,731.00 204,331.55 35%
Contractual Services 50,375.00 47,212.96 94%
Commodities 9,500.00 2,607.84 27%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 0.00 1,225.16

Expenses Total 649,606.00 255,377.51 39%

19  Environmental Division
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 0.00 14,160.00
Revenue Total 0.00 14,160.00

Expenses
Personnel Services 0.00 55,372.46
Contractual Services 0.00 1,516.29
Commodities 0.00 321.87

Expenses Total 0.00 57,210.62

5/2/2024



  2024 YTD BUDGET REPORT

Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Recd / 

Used
24  Auto Center

Revenue
Reimbursements 20,000.00 12,668.72 63%

Revenue Total 20,000.00 12,668.72 63%

Expenses
Personnel Services 178,597.00 61,847.48 35%
Contractual Services 15,995.00 6,205.84 39%
Commodities 15,380.00 5,970.83 39%

Expenses Total 209,972.00 74,024.15 35%

REVENUE TOTALS 17,197,987.00 9,823,527.67 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 23,415,158.00 7,079,030.02 30%

Fund 001 General Fund -6,217,171.00 2,744,497.65

Beginning Fund Balance: 15,122,234.00
Ending Fund Balance: 17,866,731.65

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 11,079,696.00
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 4,610,289.00

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
002  Aging & Transit Fund

Revenue
Taxes 327,668.00 194,274.01 59%
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 100.00 0.00 0%
Reimbursements 6,125.00 5,093.44 83%
Grant Revenues 1,087,751.00 1,093,842.51 101%
Transfers In from Other Funds 492,655.00 0.00 0%
Other Revenue 310,795.00 15,296.00 5%

Revenue Total 2,225,094.00 1,308,505.96 59%
Expenses

Personnel Services 1,318,662.00 375,014.80 28%
Contractual Services 662,415.00 152,855.87 23%
Commodities 241,850.00 26,502.16 11%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 317,550.00 771,599.60 243%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 425.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 2,540,902.00 1,325,972.43 52%

REVENUE TOTALS 2,225,094.00 1,308,505.96 59%
EXPENSE TOTALS 2,540,902.00 1,325,972.43 52%

Fund 002-Aging & Transit Totals (315,808.00) (17,466.47)

Beginning Fund Balance: 647,325.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 629,858.53 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 324,858.00 

003  Public Health Fund
Revenue

Taxes 603,811.00 348,535.95 58%
Licenses, Permits, and Fees 10,500.00 671.10 6%
Reimbursements 570,000.00 119,676.02 21%
Grant Revenues 1,113,500.00 686,065.55 62%
Other Revenue 750.00 1,712.81 228%

Revenue Total 2,298,561.00 1,156,661.43 50%
Expenses

Personnel Services 2,583,533.00 693,014.36 27%
Contractual Services 653,870.00 174,072.83 27%
Commodities 260,950.00 46,277.98 18%

Expenses Total 3,498,353.00 913,365.17 26%

REVENUE TOTALS 2,298,561.00 1,156,661.43 50%
EXPENSE TOTALS 3,498,353.00 913,365.17 26%

Fund 003-Public Health Totals (1,199,792.00) 243,296.26 

Beginning Fund Balance: 2,035,384.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 2,278,680.26 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 1,215,693.00 
5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
004  Noxious Weed Fund

Revenue
Taxes 137,104.00 78,813.70 57%
Other Revenue 12,000.00 1,016.62 8%

Revenue Total 149,104.00 79,830.32 54%
Expenses

Personnel Services 89,625.00 28,629.49 32%
Contractual Services 3,425.00 922.83 27%
Commodities 52,350.00 28,029.83 54%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 10,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 155,400.00 57,582.15 37%

REVENUE TOTALS 149,104.00 79,830.32 54%
EXPENSE TOTALS 155,400.00 57,582.15 37%

Fund 004-Noxious Weed Totals (6,296.00) 22,248.17 

Beginning Fund Balance: 21,858.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 44,106.17 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 9,956.00 

006  Special Bridge Fund
Revenue

Taxes 1,290,491.00 791,556.12 61%
Grant Revenues 600,000.00 158,764.38 26%
Reimbursements 300,000.00 0.00 0%

Revenue Total 2,190,491.00 950,320.50 43%
Expenses

Contractual Services 2,150,000.00 607,054.34 28%
Commodities 350,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 2,500,000.00 607,054.34 24%

REVENUE TOTALS 2,190,491.00 950,320.50 43%
EXPENSE TOTALS 2,500,000.00 607,054.34 24%

Fund 006-Special Bridge Totals (309,509.00) 343,266.16 

Beginning Fund Balance: 956,976.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 1,300,242.16 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 346,798.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
007  Road & Bridge Fund

Revenue
Taxes 5,738,049.00 3,316,060.36 58%
Reimbursements 0.00 9,069.07 
Other Revenue 1,498,325.00 378,440.27 25%

Revenue Total 7,236,374.00 3,703,569.70 51%
Expenses

Personnel Services 2,459,920.00 741,576.01 30%
Contractual Services 286,375.00 106,278.84 37%
Commodities 4,118,500.00 198,751.73 5%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 500,000.00 0.00 0%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 300,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 7,664,795.00 1,046,606.58 14%

REVENUE TOTALS 7,236,374.00 3,703,569.70 51%
EXPENSE TOTALS 7,664,795.00 1,046,606.58 14%

Fund 007-Road & Bridge Totals (428,421.00) 2,656,963.12 

Beginning Fund Balance: 1,539,211.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 4,196,174.12 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 581,665.00 

008  Solid Waste Fund
Revenue

Licenses, Permits, and Fees 5,380,000.00 3,252,001.00 60%
Reimbursements 55,000.00 36,385.75 66%
Other Revenue 5,000.00 0.00 0%

Revenue Total 5,440,000.00 3,288,386.75 60%
Expenses

Personnel Services 1,697,584.00 518,652.62 31%
Contractual Services 1,257,950.00 218,436.09 17%
Commodities 609,000.00 126,929.59 21%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 1,325,000.00 9,700.00 1%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 649,750.00 44,875.00 7%

Expenses Total 5,539,284.00 918,593.30 17%

REVENUE TOTALS 5,440,000.00 3,288,386.75 60%
EXPENSE TOTALS 5,539,284.00 918,593.30 17%

Fund 008-Solid Waste Totals (99,284.00) 2,369,793.45 

Beginning Fund Balance: 5,529,015.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 7,898,808.45 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 4,261,336.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 4,162,052.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
009  Youth Services Fund

Revenue
Reimbursements 1,498,845.00 424,781.79 28%
Transfers In from Other Funds 400,000.00 0.00 0%

Revenue Total 1,898,845.00 424,781.79 22%
Expenses

Personnel Services 1,795,420.00 594,879.33 33%
Contractual Services 119,465.00 25,555.17 21%
Commodities 50,400.00 6,891.70 14%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 134,800.00 32,998.38 24%

Expenses Total 2,100,085.00 660,324.58 31%

REVENUE TOTALS 1,898,845.00 424,781.79 22%
EXPENSE TOTALS 2,100,085.00 660,324.58 31%

Fund 009-Youth Services Totals (201,240.00) (235,542.79)

Beginning Fund Balance: 539,585.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 304,042.21 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 503,010.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 301,770.00 

013  Solid Waste Post-Closure Fund
Revenue

Transfers In from Other Funds 400,000.00 0.00 0%
Revenue Total 400,000.00 0.00 0%

Expenses
Contractual Services 312,500.00 34,961.93 11%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 7,077,113.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 7,389,613.00 34,961.93 0%

REVENUE TOTALS 400,000.00 0.00 0%
EXPENSE TOTALS 7,389,613.00 34,961.93 0%

Fund 013-Solid Waste Post-Closure Totals (6,989,613.00) (34,961.93)

Beginning Fund Balance: 7,526,537.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 7,491,575.07 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 6,989,613.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
015  Employee Benefits Fund

Revenue
Taxes 6,346,152.00 3,706,110.52 58%
Reimbursements 1,408,000.00 459,845.35 33%

Revenue Total 7,754,152.00 4,165,955.87 54%
Expenses

Personnel Services 4,870,874.00 1,837,499.84 38%
Contractual Services 3,500.00 0.00 0%
Other Expense & Reimbursements 4,000.00 0.00 0%
Transfers Out to Other Funds 4,500,000.00 1,240,943.00 28%

Expenses Total 9,378,374.00 3,078,442.84 33%

REVENUE TOTALS 7,754,152.00 4,165,955.87 54%
EXPENSE TOTALS 9,378,374.00 3,078,442.84 33%

Fund 015-Employee Benefits Totals (1,624,222.00) 1,087,513.03 

Beginning Fund Balance: 3,546,377.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 4,633,890.03 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 2,795,389.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 1,000,000.00 

017  TECH Center Fund
Revenue

Taxes 394,806.00 223,475.40 57%
Revenue Total 394,806.00 223,475.40 57%

Expenses
Contractual Services 400,000.00 243,000.00 61%

Expenses Total 400,000.00 243,000.00 61%

REVENUE TOTALS 394,806.00 223,475.40 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 400,000.00 243,000.00 61%

Fund 017-TECH Center Totals (5,194.00) (19,524.60)

Beginning Fund Balance: 21,656.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 2,131.40 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 15,375.00 

018  Mental Health Fund
Revenue

Taxes 396,954.00 226,683.15 57%
Revenue Total 396,954.00 226,683.15 57%

Expenses
Contractual Services 400,000.00 243,000.00 61%

Expenses Total 400,000.00 243,000.00 61%

REVENUE TOTALS 396,954.00 226,683.15 57%
EXPENSE TOTALS 400,000.00 243,000.00 61%

Fund 018-Mental Health Totals (3,046.00) (16,316.85)

Beginning Fund Balance: 18,417.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 2,100.15 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 13,443.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
029  Special Parks & Recreation Fund

Revenue
Taxes 19,000.00 7,320.68 39%

Revenue Total 19,000.00 7,320.68 39%

REVENUE TOTALS 19,000.00 7,320.68 39%
Fund 029 Special Parks & Recreation Totals 19,000.00 7,320.68 

Beginning Fund Balance: 25,820.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 33,140.68 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 22,537.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 41,537.00 

030  Special Alcohol & Drug Fund
Revenue

Taxes 19,000.00 7,342.47 39%
Revenue Total 19,000.00 7,342.47 39%

Expenses
Contractual Services 10,000.00 10,000.00 100%

Expenses Total 10,000.00 10,000.00 100%

REVENUE TOTALS 19,000.00 7,342.47 39%
EXPENSE TOTALS 10,000.00 10,000.00 100%

Fund 030 Special Alcohol & Drug Totals 9,000.00 (2,657.53)

Beginning Fund Balance: 52,530.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 49,872.47 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 47,489.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 56,489.00 

1/0/1900 #######
083  Bond & Interest Fund

Revenue
Taxes 1,497,286.00 885,225.02 59%
Transfers In from Other Funds 249,750.00 45,036.34 18%
Other Revenue 52,003.00 32,992.20 63%

Revenue Total 1,799,039.00 963,253.56 54%
Expenses

Contractual Services 1,812,188.00 193,043.75 11%
Expenses Total 1,812,188.00 193,043.75 11%

REVENUE TOTALS 1,799,039.00 963,253.56 54%
EXPENSE TOTALS 1,812,188.00 193,043.75 11%

Fund 083 Bond & Interest Totals (13,149.00) 770,209.81 

Beginning Fund Balance: 264,724.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 1,034,933.81 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 204,423.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 150,000.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
085  Noxious Weed Capital Outlay Fund

Revenue
Transfers In from Other Funds 10,000.00 0.00 0%

Revenue Total 10,000.00 0.00 0%

REVENUE TOTALS 10,000.00 0.00 0%
EXPENSE TOTALS 0.00 0.00 

Fund 085 Noxious Weed Capital Outlay Totals 10,000.00 0.00 

Beginning Fund Balance: 116,276.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 116,276.00 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 114,276.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 124,276.00 

086  Public Health Capital Outlay Fd
Expenses

Capital Improvement & Outlay 25,000.00 0.00 0%
Expenses Total 25,000.00 0.00 0%

REVENUE TOTALS 0.00 0.00 
EXPENSE TOTALS 25,000.00 0.00 0%

Fund 086 Public Health Capital Outlay Totals (25,000.00) 0.00 

Beginning Fund Balance: 663,201.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 663,201.00 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 388,201.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 363,201.00 

087  Historical Museum Fund
Revenue

Taxes 184,621.00 106,194.50 58%
Revenue Total 184,621.00 106,194.50 58%

Expenses
Contractual Services 185,000.00 112,000.00 61%

Expenses Total 185,000.00 112,000.00 61%

REVENUE TOTALS 184,621.00 106,194.50 58%
EXPENSE TOTALS 185,000.00 112,000.00 61%

Fund 087 Historical Museum Totals (379.00) (5,805.50)
Beginning Fund Balance: 7,574.00 

Ending Fund Balance: 1,768.50 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 5,284.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
093  Special Equipment Fund

Revenue
Taxes 732,643.00 427,982.02 58%
Reimbursements 160,400.00 990.00 1%

Revenue Total 893,043.00 428,972.02 48%
Expenses

Contractual Services 432,235.00 513,218.43 119%
Capital Improvement & Outlay 601,776.00 18,891.37 3%

Expenses Total 1,034,011.00 532,109.80 51%

REVENUE TOTALS 893,043.00 428,972.02 48%
EXPENSE TOTALS 1,034,011.00 532,109.80 51%

Fund 093 Special Equipment Fund Totals (140,968.00) (103,137.78)

Beginning Fund Balance: 184,392.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 81,254.22 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 160,936.00 

094  Special Road Fund
Revenue

Taxes 0.00 1,349.50 
Grant Revenues 0.00 43,174.60 

Revenue Total 0.00 44,524.10 
Expenses

Contractual Services 0.00 32,863.73 
Capital Improvement & Outlay 823,722.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 823,722.00 32,863.73 4%

REVENUE TOTALS 0.00 44,524.10 
EXPENSE TOTALS 823,722.00 32,863.73 4%

Fund 094 Special Road Fund Totals 823,722.00 32,863.73 

Beginning Fund Balance: 1,073,063.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 1,040,199.27 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 823,722.00 
1/0/1900 #######

098  CIP Fund
Revenue

Taxes 524,849.00 316,136.50 60%
Revenue Total 524,849.00 316,136.50 60%

Expenses
Capital Improvement & Outlay 665,000.00 8,989.65 1%

Expenses Total 665,000.00 8,989.65 1%

REVENUE TOTALS 524,849.00 316,136.50 60%
EXPENSE TOTALS 665,000.00 8,989.65 1%

Fund 098 CIP Totals (140,151.00) 307,146.85

Beginning Fund Balance: 188,962.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 496,108.85 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 154,906.00 

5/2/2024



Fund Amended Budget
Amt Received / 

Expended
% Rec'd 

/ Used
180  Internal Services Fund

Revenue
Reimbursements 685,846.00 110,186.44 16%

Revenue Total 685,846.00 110,186.44 16%
Expenses

Commodities 665,846.00 115,119.93 17%
Expenses Total 665,846.00 115,119.93 17%

REVENUE TOTALS 685,846.00 110,186.44 16%
EXPENSE TOTALS 665,846.00 115,119.93 17%

Fund 180 Internal Services Totals 20,000.00 (4,933.49)

Beginning Fund Balance: 103,221.00 
Ending Fund Balance: 98,287.51 

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 13,141.00 
Reserve for Cash Carryover & Contingencies: 33,141.00 

994  Municipalities Fight Addiction
Revenue

Grant Revenues 200,000.00 37,217.26 19%
Revenue Total 200,000.00 37,217.26 19%

Expenses
Other Expense & Reimbursements 340,952.00 0.00 0%

Expenses Total 340,952.00 0.00 0%

REVENUE TOTALS 200,000.00 37,217.26
EXPENSE TOTALS 340,952.00 0.00

Fund 994 Municipalities Fight Addiction Totals 200,000.00 37,217.26

Beginning Fund Balance: 116,925.00
Ending Fund Balance: 154,142.26

Cash Balance Forward (Budgeted Resource): 140,952.00

5/2/2024


	06B Drafted March Minutes and Canvass.pdf (p.4-23)
	06C April Minutes.pdf (p.24-35)
	06D SO 24 Ford Maverick Purchase and 14 F150 as Surplus.pdf (p.36-47)
	06E Planning Case 24 03 USD 313.pdf (p.48-83)
	06F Planning Case 2024 04 Gun Club.pdf (p.84-141)
	06G Electronic Media Mobile Device Security Training Policy.pdf (p.142-152)
	07A Health Department Annual Report.pdf (p.153-174)
	07B Appointment of RCHD Advisory Board.pdf (p.175-179)
	07C Shooting Range, FDs Bldg Needs.pdf (p.180-201)
	08A Monthly Department Reports.pdf (p.202-211)
	08B Financial Report.pdf (p.212-226)

